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1 9 8 8 Results 

Highlights .... Yer ended D*ec. 31.  
1988 1987 % Change 

Earnings per share $3.11 $3.01 3.3 

Dividends declared per share $2.095 $1.99 5.3 

Revenues (millions) $2,006.5 $1,770.3 13.3 

Net income (millions) $214.8 $204.9 4.8 

Return on equity 13.9% 14.1% 

Assets (millions) $4,495.5 $4,401.2 2.1 

Customers (thousands) 1.634.2 1.603.7 1.9

Peak electric demand 
(megawatts) 

Electric energy sales 
(millions of kilowatt-hours) 

Benefit employees

6,923 

34,796 

7,504

6,377 

31,641 

7,699

8.6
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Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders 

With a lot of hard work and 
some good luck, your company 
produced record results in 1988.  

Earnings for the year reached a 
record $3.11; our 13.9 percent return 
on common equity exceeded the 
electric utility industry average; 
your directors increased dividends 
5 percent; retail electric sales grew 
6.6 percent; peak electric demand 
attained levels we projected for 1994 
with normal weather; more cus
tomers than ever enjoyed low-cost, 
convenient NSP natural gas; and 
employees turned in superb per
formances sweating out the weather 
to ensure that customers received 
the reliable, low-cost service they 
expect from NSP.  

Earnings were up for several 
reasons: Robust electric sales due 
to the hottest summer on record and 
a healthy economy, electric rate in
creases and strong gas sales. Partially 
offsetting these factors were the cost 
of a full year's operation of the new 
Sherco 3 generating plant and higher 
operating and maintenance costs.  

Each of our business units 
Power Supply, Electric Utility and 
Gas Utility - turned in solid per

formances, as did NSP-Wisconsin.  
NORENCO improved its operating 
and financial performance, although 
write-downs on two facilities offset 
these gains.

Our performance gave life to the 
Statement of Values we developed last 
year to guide our actions. Our values 
emphasize integrity, safety and doing 
well by our customers, shareholders 
and the communities we serve. We 
also value excellence and declare: 
"We will be the best at what we do." 

NSP employees maintained the 
integrity of our operating system and 
our reputation for high quality service 
under the twin pressures of record 
high temperatures and record high 
electric demand.  

Dispatch center employees 
negotiated additional power pur
chases for relatively low prices.  
Crews at our baseload and peaking 
generating plants made sure the 
plants were available to serve the 
unusually high demand. Almost all 
of our plants generated a record 
number of megawatt-hours.  

Earnings per Share 
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We estimate the percentage 
of homes with air conditioners sky
rocketed during the last two summers 
from 65 to 81 percent. Transformers 
in some neighborhoods overloaded as 
a result, but field crews responded 
quickly to restore cooling power.  

NSP's gas business peaks in the 
winter, but our construction season is 
in the summer. Employees withstood 
the heat as they installed service on 
schedule and within budget to more 
than 9,000 new customers.  

Our two newest generating 
plants were knights in shining armor.  
Sherco 3 performed above our high 
expectations. The plant, which began 
operations Nov. 1, 1987, was available 
for service 91.7 percent of the time 
a remarkable achievement for the first 
year. NSP's 504-megawatt (Mw) share 
of the 855-Mw unit played a key role 
in our ability to meet economically 
the high summer demand.  

Although the drought affected 
its output, unit 2 at the renovated Jim 
Falls site came on line in July to add 
clean, renewable hydro power to 
NSP's system.  

The summer highlighted 
the importance of our marketing pro
grams to reduce or shift electric use 
from periods of high demand. Without 
the cumulative effect of these load 
management efforts during the past 
several years, we estimate peak 
demand would have been more 
than 200 Mw higher.  

Another important accomplish
ment in 1988 was the settlement of 
several electric rate cases we filed 
primarily to recover the costs of 
Sherco 3. In Minnesota, our largest 
regulatory jurisdiction, we received



$74.2 million of our $97.3 million re
quest. Importantly, the rate order 
includes the total cost of Sherco 3 
in the rate base.  

As we saw last summer and 
will continue to see for decades, the 
addition of Sherco 3 to our generating 
system benefits both customers and 
shareholders. Even with the rate in
creases, our electric rates continue to 
be among the lowest in the country.  

Your company did not devote 
all of its efforts to dealing with high 
temperatures and high demand; we 
also took steps to further control 
costs, improve service and prepare 
for a more competitive future.  

We made several important 
strides. We offered an early retire
ment program last January and 

Dividends Declared 
per Share
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developed an incentive pay plan for all 
employees that goes into effect this 
year. We determined that our corpo
rate direction will be to focus on our 
core businesses - electric and natural 
gas service. And we developed stra
tegies to secure NSP's future as 
a premier energy supplier.  

Predictions of the future don't 
come with guarantees, but one thing 
is certain: The electric utility indus
try will be more competitive. Over 
the years, competitive pressures to 
deliver quality service at a low cost, 
while maintaining solid financial re
sults, will separate the good utilities 
from the best. NSP intends to remain 
in the top tier.  

The annual report this year 
focuses on the economic strength and 
diversity of the area we serve and 
NSP's ability to provide customers 
low-cost, reliable service. These two 
qualities will in large part determine 
our future success. By providing our 
customers competitive energy rates, 
we can help them be more competi
tive in their businesses. And when 
they succeed, we succeed, too.

1988 was a challenging year. But 
our success reflects the skill and com
mitment of NSP employees. It also 
is a tribute to the guidance and com
mitment of your board of directors.  
I thank them for their dedication to 
making NSP the best at what it does.  

Your company last year proved 
it can provide quality service at a low 
cost under very difficult conditions.  
We look forward to continuing our 
excellent record in 1989 and beyond.  

James J. Howard 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Feb. 10, 1989
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NSP serves parts of Minnesota, Wisconsin, North Dakota, 

South Dakota and Michigan's Upper Peninsula. We generate and 

transmit electricity to almost 1.3 million customers and distribute 

natural gas to about 334,000 customers. NSP also supplies telephone 

service in Minot, N.D. About 65 percent of our retail electric sales 

are in the Twin Cities (Minneapolis/St. Paul) metropolitan area.  

A utility can only be as strong as the customers it serves. NSP 

serves a dynamic and economically diverse area. Low-cost, reliable 

NSP service helps customers be competitive in their businesses 

and contributes to the area's economic health.  

NSP's commercial and industrial electric sales increased

19
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5.2 percent annually the past five years compared with the national 

average of only 3.1 percent. No one industrial sector accounts for 

more than 4 percent of total retail sales, with food processing 

and papermaking leading the list and non-electric machinery 

(i.e., computers) and scientific instruments close behind.  

The Upper Midwest in many areas is heavily agricultural, but 

only some small towns NSP serves are affected notably by swings in 

the farm economy. The cities and major towns in our service territory 

are regional centers for trade, higher education, health care and 

entertainment.  

NSP believes it is a privilege and an obligation to offer 

residential, commercial and industrial customers high quality energy 

services that are priced among the lowest third in the country.

SO UT H DAKOTA 

Citibank South Dakota, the 

worlds largest issuer of VISA 

and Mastercard credit cards, in 

1988 alone mailed more than 13 
million cards from its Sioux 

Falls base, where it employs 

2,500 people.
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NSP Service Territory

NSPs service territory includes 

the fastest growing metropolitan 

areas in each of Minnesota, 
North Dakota, South Dakota 

and Wisconsin.

Minnesota consistently ranks 

among the top 10 states for the 

number of patents issued per 

million residents.
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O p e va tio ns H ev ie w

NSP - A "Pure Play" 

What you see is what you get.  
NSP is a premier energy supplier 
that focuses on its core businesses: 
Electric and natural gas service.  
While many utilities are diversifying 
into non-energy ventures, NSP 
concentrates on what it knows best 
providing low-cost, reliable energy.  

Our strategy recognizes that 
the utility industry is changing.  
Increased competition and regulatory 
uncertainty make success ever more 
difficult.  

NSP will meet its challenges 
with a strong tradition of low costs, 
excellent service, innovation and 
financial flexibility. NSP will prosper 
by building on past successes and by 
seizing the opportunities and manag
ing the risks of change.  

We will grow from a foundation 
that includes: A healthy, economically 

Minnesota has the highest high 

school graduation rate in the 

country, and 75 percent of the 

graduates further their 

education.

diverse service territory; steady, 
manageable electric sales growth; 
opportunities for gas service 
expansion to new areas; an extensive, 
reliable transmission system that 
gives NSP access to key markets to 
buy and sell power; and a regulatory 
environment that should benefit our 
customers with low rates and our 
investors with good results.  

Vision: Remain A Premier Company 
NSP isn't changing its business 

focus, but we are changing our busi
ness behavior. Although NSP electric 
and natural gas rates already are among 
the lowest in the country, competition 
requires continual scrutiny of costs, 
productivity and opportunity.  

In 1989 an incentive pay plan 
begins for all employees. The incen
tives recognize individual, team and 
corporate-wide efforts to maintain 
competitive rates and improve opera
ting, safety and financial measures.

At every level, employees are 
taking a more competitive, market
oriented approach. We work closely 
with customers to understand their 
changing residential and business 
energy needs so that we can better 
respond to them.  

An early retirement program, 
which 422 people accepted in early 
1988, enabled the company to stream
line operations, cut costs and open 
career options for other employees.  

NSP's business unit structure 
provides clear lines of responsibility 
for cost control, revenue growth, 
business strategy and safety.  

The business units are: Power 
Supply (subdivided into generation 
and transmission functions); Electric



McNeilus recently built a major addition to its main facility, completed 
a new plant nearby and expanded its product line to include the ready
mix concrete and its production equipment.

Utility (the distribution arm of NSP
Minnesota, which also oversees the 
telephone company in Minot, N.D.); 
and Gas Utility (distributes natural 
gas in Minnesota and North Dakota).  
A central corporate operations 
staff supports these units. NSP
Wisconsin, a wholly owned subsid
iary, is an electric and gas utility.  

Our guiding vision is to remain 
the premier electric and natural gas 
supplier in the region by offering 
customers the best value through 
low-cost, high quality service. This 
will enable NSP to maintain a sound 
financial base and provide investors 
with an attractive return.

Dodge Center, Minn., population 1,800, is home to McNeilus 

Truck and Manufacturing, Inc., the world's largest maker of truck

mounted concrete mixers. During its peak season, McNeilus 

employs 650 people.  

NSP representatives in early 1988 noticed McNeilus wasn't 

using as much electricity as the manufacturer had forecasted and 

contracted for. NSP worked with NcNeilus to determine its needs, 

saving the manufacturer $16,000 a year. Efficient energy use can add 

up to big savings, plus cash. McNeilus in 1988 installed energy

efficient lighting, for which NSP gave it an $8,900 rebate.



Educating 790 K-12 students from a school district population of only 

3, 000 requires careful spending of the limited budget.

Anticipating the day low-cost, convenient natural gas would 

be available, Royalton High School was built years ago with a boiler 

that could burn either natural gas or oil. The planning paid off in 

1988 when NSP extended gas service to the area.  

Burning NSP natural gas will save the school about $4,500 

a year on heating. Late in 1988, the school bus garage was converted 

to gas heat for even more savings; the elementary school is next.  

The district hopes to use its savings to hire a part-time teacher to

work with gifted and talented children.

Hot Year For Power Supply 
Two words - hot and records 

sum up 1988 for Power Supply.  
Spurred by the hottest summer 

on record and a strong economy, peak 
demand surged above 6,000 mega
watts (Mw) 21 days between June 14 
and Aug. 17. The record, set Aug. 16, 
is 6,923 Mw.  

NSP had forecast the 1988 peak 
to reach just over 6,300 Mw under 
normal weather conditions. To put 
this into perspective: It was as if 
a new city suddenly appeared, requir
ing service for 600,000 more homes 
than planned.
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Electric demand was unusual, 
but the performance of NSP employ
ees and facilities was excellent, as 
usual.  

The Sherco 3 generating plant 
in its first full year of operation per
formed far above expectations. The 
855-Mw coal-fired unit was available 
for service 91.7 percent of the time 
an excellent run for the first year.  

Sherco 3, which came on line 
Nov. 1, 1987, played a key role in 
NSP's ability to meet the extra
ordinary summer demand smoothly 
and cost-effectively. NSP owns 59 
percent, or 504 Mw, of the unit; 
Southern Minnesota Municipal Power 
Agency owns the remainder.

North Dakota and Minn, 

have the most millionair 

the US. for every 100,00 
residents.  

The hot weather and drought 
affected not only demand for our 
product, but how we generated it.  
NSP in the past has bought up to 15 
percent of its energy from the Manitoba 
Hydro-Electric Board. But low water 
conditions in 1987 and 1988 reduced 
significantly the available power from 
Manitoba Hydro. To supplement the 
diminished supply, NSP bought power 
from other utilities, fired up its own 
peaking plants and delayed projects 
at other plants.  

The effects of the drought also 
held operations below capacity at both 
the Allen S. King and Monticello gen
erating plants. Employees worked 
around the clock to ensure these 
plants delivered as much power as 
possible. The King plant in June 
returned to service from a scheduled 
major outage in time to help meet the 
high demand and went on to set a 
plant operating record.  

NSP's recent renegotiations 
of its coal and transportation con
tracts paid off in 1988. Although we 
increased coal-fired generation more 
than 15 percent, total coal costs rose 
only about 2 percent from 1987.  

Power Purchases Add Capacity 
As a result of the healthy econ

omy and increased air conditioner use 
in homes and businesses, NSP in 1988 
stepped up its efforts to secure addi
tional capacity, especially during 
periods of peak demand.  

The company is studying sev-

eral options, including increasing its 
short-term power purchases from 
neighboring utilities and building a 
peaking plant in the mid-1990s.  

NSP is considering the need 
for a baseload coal-fired plant for the 
late 1990s. We have on the drawing 
boards a standardized plant design, 
called a "reference plant," that will 
cut construction costs-and time. NSP 
continues to watch closely economic 
growth and other trends to determine 
its capacity needs.  

Coal Costs 

(Dollars per million Btu) 

$2 
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Minnesota companies are the 

world's leading producers of 

hearing aids and pacemakers.  

Nuclear Plants Top Performers 

NSP's nuclear operations are 
recognized worldwide for their 
excellence. Officials of the Interna
tional Atomic Energy Agency toured 
our two-unit Prairie Island plant as 
part of a study to establish standards 
for third-world countries developing 
nuclear power. Prairie Island is the 
only U.S. plant included in the study.  
The agency chose the plant because 
of its excellent 6perating record and 
low worker radiation exposure levels.  

Monticello is one of two U.S.  
nuclear units chosen for a feasibility 
study on nuclear operating plant life 
extension. The Electric Power Re
search Institute and the U.S. Depart
ment of Energy are conducting the 
study. Monticello's license expires 
in 2010.  

A nuclear industry magazine 
ranked NSP first in the country in 
overall plant capacity from 1985 
through 1987 among utilities with 
more than two nuclear units. NSP's 
capacity factor, which compares the 
amount of electricity a unit produced 
with what it could have produced, 
was 81 percent.  

The Institute of Nuclear Power 
Operations (INPO) restored the "1" 
rating, the highest possible, to the 
Prairie Island plant. In 1987 the 
industry organization changed the

plant's rating from a lto a 2. Upon NSP's 
request, INPO in 1988 re-inspected 
the plant, sooner than scheduled, and 
awarded the superior rating. INPO 
evaluates a plant's training, quality 
assurance, maintenance, operations 
and engineering.  

Monticello's rating decreased 
from 1 to a 2 as a result of new, higher 
standards and plant projects under 
way but not completed in time for 
INPO's inspection. INPO conducts 
the next inspection in early 1990.  

Monticello in 1988 set a plant 
record for continuous operation.  
The nuclear plant's 363-day record 
exceeded its previous longest run 
by 164 days. Prairie Island unit 2 in 
January 1988 set the company record 
after operating continuously for 
406 days.  

NSP is examining ways to 
expand Prairie Island's spent fuel 
storage capacity, which could reach 
its limit in the mid-1990s. The federal 
government's plan to open a perma
nent repository for high-level radio
active waste is set optimistically for 
2003. Monticello's spent fuel pool has 
ample capacity into the next century.

Innovation Fuels Alternatives 

NSP is an active partner in 
environmental protection. We have 
invested more than $352 million in 
reducing sulfur emissions. Since 
1970, NSP cut sulfur emissions by 
about 70 percent, while increasing 
coal-fired generation by more than 50 
percent. We have achieved this record 
by burning low-sulfur coal, installing 
emissions control devices and through 
continual innovation.  

Sherco 3's dry scrubber and 
baghouse are state-of-the-art.  
Together they capture more than 
90 percent of the sulfur dioxide and 
almost 100 percent of the dust 
particulates.  

NSP operates one of the world's 
largest fluidized bed boilers. We 
renovated unit 2 at the Black Dog 
plant to install the new technology 
that eliminates most pollutants in the 
burning process. The 96-Mw unit in 
1988 successfully completed its first 
full year of operation.  

Plant Availability 
Nuclear 

Industry Average 

(1983-1987) 68% 

100%

75 
V Z70,ed

50 

25

.0' ~

0.. W.. 7.. 8 .. 7 8.. 7 0 84 85 86 87 88



11

NSP completed one year of 
operation at its municipal solid waste 
processing facility in Newport, Minn.  
We began testing at a second facility 
in Elk River, Minn., which we jointly 
own with United Power Association 
(UPA). The facilities convert waste 
from Twin Cities area counties into 
refuse derived fuel (RDF). NSP 
modified and upgraded two older 
generating plants to burn RDF from 
the Newport facility. UPA burns the 
Elk River RDF at one of its gener
ating plants.  

Burning RDF has several 
benefits for NSP and its customers.  
RDF is a competitively priced boiler 
fuel. It also reduces significantly the 
amount of waste counties must 
dispose of in landfills.  

NSP continually researches 
ways to cost-effectively meet cus
tomer needs and to generate reliable, 
environmentally acceptable energy.  

Plant Availability 

Coal 

Industry Average 

(1983-1987) 77%
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Poiwer Purchast In Dispute 

To prepare for expected future 
capacity needs, NSP contracted to 
buy a 214-Mw share of a Minnesota 
Power generating plant, with payment 
beginning in 1989. NSP also contrac
ted to buy additional capacity totaling 
102 Mw by 1991. The purchase price, 
including transmission rights, is 
approximately $180 million.  

The contracts require advance 
determination by the Minnesota 
Public Utilities Commission (MPUC) 
and Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) on the prudence 
of the purchase. MPUC approved the 
purchase, but FERC refused to do so.  
FERC twice was asked to reconsider, 
but denied the requests.  

NSP maintains advance FERC 
approval is necessary for the contract 
to be enforceable; Minnesota Power 
disagrees. NSP has asked a district 
court to resolve the contract interpre
tation disagreement. It is not known 
when a decision will be rendered.  

NORENCO On Hold 
NORENCO, a wholly owned, 

non-regulated subsidiary, in early 
1988 settled a contract dispute and 
restored steam service to a St. Paul 
paper manufacturing plant under a

Wisconsin dairy farmers 

annually produce 2 billion 

pounds of cheese, including 

enough mozzarella to heap on 

900 million pizzas.  

new 13-year contract. The five-mile 
steam line to the paper plant from an 
NSP generating plant is performing 
well, meeting the customer's needs 
and providing a reasonable return on 
the investment.  

NORENCO has put on hold any 
expansion plans. It is seeking buyers 
for its two steam-producing plants in 
Wisconsin and wrote down the value 
of the facilities.  

NORENCO will continue its 
steam service to the St. Paul paper 
plant, a window manufacturer and 
state prison near Stillwater, Minn., 
and its management of an energy 
system in a St. Paul industrial and 
residential development.  

Electric Utility Sells Right Stuff 
NSP's electric marketing 

programs help customers use NSP 
energy most efficiently, make the 
most efficient use of NSP's generating 
plants and delay the need to build or 
buy additional capacity. The ultimate 
goals are low rates for customers and 
good returns for investors.  

The Electric Utility for the 
second consecutive year exceeded its 
goals to help customers get the most 
for their energy dollar. Marketing 
employees worked with customers to
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reduce, create or shift to different 
time periods a total of 108 Mw of 
electric use; the 1988 goal was 68 
Mw. The 1989 goal is to achieve 
another 68 Mw.  

The utility industry calls this 
effort "demand-side management," 
or managing electric use from the 
customer's side of the plug. NSP 
defines it as customer service. Under 
the umbrella of customer service, 
NSP has four marketing strategies: 

M Reduce electric demand 
during times of peak demand and high 
production costs; 

a Shift customer electric use 
from high-cost to lower-cost time 
periods; 

a Fill the valleys of low cus
tomer demand, usually during night 
hours, with additional electric sales; 

1988 Energy Sources for 
Electric Generation 

I NSP 

. Electric Utility Industry

40 

20
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a Reduce overall demand 
through conservation.  

Efforts to reduce electric use 
during peak periods paid off during 
the unusually hot summer. Our peak 
demand record would have been about 
200 Mw higher without our peak
shaving and conservation marketing 
efforts.  

NSP points the way toward 
energy efficiency with a variety of 
incentives and information, including 
special rates, cash rebates for pur
chasing energy-efficient appliances 
and equipment, energy audits and 
engineering assistance to evaluate 
new energy technologies.  

Rebates for energy-efficient 
appliances and equipment are espe
cially popular. The Electric Utility in 
1988 paid out a record $5.1 million to 
75,000 residential customers and 
$1.5 million to 24,000 commercial and 
industrial customers. The rebates 
ranged from $15 to a residential 
customer for a new, efficient 
refrigerator, to $84,000 for new 
lighting a manufacturer installed in 
several of its facilities.

Residents in the Twin Cities 

metro area are second only to 

New York City residents in their 

per capita spending on the arts.  

Pricing Svstem Mirrors Marketplace 

Marking the fifth anniversary of 
the company's decentralization into 
business units, Power Supply and 
Electric Utility formalized an electric
ity transfer price agreement. The new 
method recognizes daily and seasonal 
fluctuations in the price and demand 
for electricity. In preparation for a 
more competitive energy market, the 
agreement gives market-pricing 
signals as if the transactions were 
between separate companies.  

Consolidations Otr Economy 
The Electric Utility made sev

eral consolidation moves to eliminate 
duplication of supplies and services 
and to improve customer service.  
Early in 1988, the Electric Utility 
consolidated its 14 divisions into six 
regions. In October it announced 
plans to merge the Minneapolis and 
St. Paul customer business offices 
into one.  

The Electric Utility centralized 
its inventory and transformer repair 
operations in the new Maple Grove 
Materials Complex near Minneapolis, 
which opened in December. NSP 
expects to reduce annual inventory 
costs between $5 million and $10 
million by 1991.  

Safety Is Top Priority 

Although employees fell short of 
meeting 1988's stringent safety goal, 
the number of lost-workday injuries 
decreased 15 percent. Employee 
safety in 1989 will remain a key focus 
for the Electric Utility.

I



When Mark and Andrea 

Pickenpack built their new 

hoi they knew what they 

didr't want. They didn t wan 

inetfficin appliances or drafty 

windows Most it alt, they 

didOnt want to wastc NSPs 

ow-cost eery.  

An NSP enrgy audit o 

thir od home helped them 

ecide the new homes 

spec f cons They sele ed 

to te windows and 

upgraded te insulation. They 

bought enrgy efficienit 

app iances eligjibte for NSP 

reblates 

The Pickenpack family 

in tnheir new home will enjoy 

warmer winters and cooler 

summers and continue to see 

reasonable NSP bills.  

NSP offers a variety of services 

to its residential customers, 

including home energy audits 

and rebates for energy-efficient 

appliances. We even finance and 

lease energy-efficient security 

lighting.



Betty Grahek begins her 

day as an NSP-Wisconsin 

executive secretary and often 

ends it as a teacher. She tutors 

adults through Literacy 

Volunteers of America.  

"Each student has a 

special problem," Betty says.  

Betty has tutored a woman 

from Poland and helped a 

student attending technical 

college with her reading 

assignments. The young 

woman completed her class 

and recently found a job in her 

area of study.  

"You form a partner

ship with these students," says 

Betty, who eagerly awaits her 

next student. "I learn from 

them as I teach." 

Betty Grahek, like hundreds 

of other NSP employees and 

retirees, donates her time and 

skills as a volunteer. Betty 

tutors students in her NSP 

office or at a local library.



NSP sponsors safety seminars 
for contractors and contributes to 
Minnesota's statewide, one-call 
system that contractors use to locate 
underground electric and gas lines.  
We also offer safety demonstrations 
to schools. In 1988, more than 20,000 
children learned to live, work and play 
safely around electricity.  

Telephone Company Goes Digital 

Our telephone company in Minot 
is one of the first utilities in North 
Dakota to install a digital central office 
switch, making customer service 
faster and more efficient. The 
company also completed a digital toll 
network from Minot to Bismarck, the 
state capital, to improve long-distance 
transmission quality.  

Electric Rate Cases Filed 
NSP in late 1987 and 1988 filed 

requests to increase rates in nearly all 
its electric regulatory jurisdictions 
primarily to recover the costs of 
Sherco 3 and higher maintenance and 
operating costs.  

We requested a $97.3 million 
annual increase in Minnesota retail 
electric rates. In early 1988, working 
with the various parties to the rate 
case, the company agreed to a $75 
million rate increase. The agreement 
balances the interests of the company, 
its customers and shareholders and 
enabled NSP to reduce the cost, time 
and risk of a fully litigated rate case.  
A key to the agreement is that the 
total cost of Sherco 3 is recognized as 
an investment upon which NSP is 
allowed to earn a return.  

In its final order, the Minnesota 
commission granted $74.2 million, 
resulting in a 7.1 percent overall rate 
increase, and authorized an 11.7 
percent rate of return on common

equity. An interim rate increase of 
$95.0 million had been in effect since 
Jan. 2, 1988. NSP refunded the differ
ence between interim and final rates, 
which were effective Nov. 1, 1988.  

NSP also reached an agreement 
in its request to increase South 
Dakota retail electric rates. Overall 
rates increased $2.3 million, or 
4.6 percent. Rates went into effect 
Jan. 1,1989.  

The North Dakota Public 
Service Commission (PSC) in March 
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While the Twin Cities metro 

area places 16th nationally in 

population, it ranks third in the 

number of Fortune 500 
company headquarters.  

not only turned down NSP's $4.1 
million rate increase, it ordered NSP 
to reduce rates by $427,000 after 
deciding to allocate NSP's system 
costs differently to North Dakota 
customers than the allocations used 
in NSP's other rate jurisdictions.  
Upon reconsideration, the PSC 
accepted NSP's settlement offer for a 
$1.9 million, 2.5 percent, increase.  
Rates go into effect April 1, 1989.  

NSP-Wisconsin received 
approval to increase retail electric 
rates by 0.2 percent to cover rising 
fuel costs. Under Wisconsin law, rates 
do not adjust automatically for fuel 
costs. Utilities must file for increases 
or decreases annually.  

NSP-Wisconsin reached an 
agreement in its request to increase 
Michigan retail electric rates. Overall 
rates increased $719,700. Rates went 
into effect Feb. 8, 1989.  

We received final approval to 
increase Minnesota wholesale elec
tric rates by $2.1 million, effective 
Feb. 17, 1988. Pending final FERC 
approval, NSP-Wisconsin's wholesale 
electric rates increased $2.4 million, 
effective Jan. 1, 1988.  

Gas Utility Builds On Its Strengths 
The Gas Utility in 1988 cele

brated its fifth year of operation as a 
business unit by continuing to reduce 
costs, improve service and expand its 
business. Also, employees cut in half 
the number of lost-workday injuries 
since 1987, the Gas Utility's best 
safety performance ever.
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You don't need to go to 
Florence to see Michelangelo's 

famous "David" statue. An 

18-foot replica graces a Sioux 

Falls park.

NSP's low rates are attractive 
to new and existing customers. Five 
years ago, our gas rates were close to 
the national average; NSP rates now 
rank in the lower third.  

Overall, NSP gas prices since 
1983 have declined 35 percent. NSP 
cost controls, regulatory changes and 
a dramatic increase in competition 
among gas suppliers contributed to 
the decrease.  

In addition, the Gas Utility has 
reduced the cost of installing new 
main by 23 percent since 1986. The 
cost of installing a new service 
declined 22 percent in the same 
period.  

Service Expanding To New Areas 
NSP's goal is to extend gas 

mains where it is cost-effective.  
Throughout 1988, teams of employees 
distributed information promoting the 
advantages of NSP natural gas to 
residents and business owners in five 
communities without gas service 
northwest of Minneapolis.  

More than 1,800 customers in 
the area signed on to receive NSP nat
ural gas. Construction crews installed 
mains and connected service lines in 
record time and within budget.  

NSP's competitive rates, pre
mium service and effective marketing 
efforts, both within the existing 
service territory and to new areas, 
combined to attract 7,600 new cus-

tomers. The Gas Utility in 1989 will 
focus its efforts on continued growth.  

To improve service and compete 
with alternative fuels, such as oil, coal 
and propane, NSP offers various 
rates. We also offer agency service, 
arranging the purchase and transpor
tation of gas from other suppliers for 
individual large-volume customers. In 
Minnesota and North Dakota, we also 
have the flexibility to adjust rates to 
compete with other fuels.  

Consolidations Improve Service 

The Gas Utility, based in 
St. Paul, consolidated its North 
Dakota, St. Cloud and southeastern 
Minnesota gas operations into one.  
The Electric Utility's division offices 
previously directed these gas opera
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tions. Integrating all Minnesota 
Company gas operations enables the 
business unit to operate more effi
ciently, strengthen cost and quality 
controls and offer new career oppor
tunities to employees.  

Surveys indicate customer 
satisfaction is high. In a recent sur
vey, 94 percent responded favorably 
when asked about the quality of NSP's 
gas service. Ninety-five percent of 
those surveyed said NSP employees 
were courteous; 98 percent said 
employees were knowledgeable and 
professional.  

NSP-Wisconsin Has Good Year 
The $98 million, four-year 

project to redevelop the Jim Falls 
hydro plant on the Chippewa River in 
Wisconsin culminated with a dedica
tion ceremony in September that 
attracted 3,000 people. NSP built a 
new powerhouse and substation and 
rechanneled the river to harness four 
times more clean, renewable hydro 
power from the site.  

Unit 2 began operations in July; 
unit 1 went into service in November.  
The goal was to increase capacity to 
48 Mw; we are getting 57 Mw from 
the redeveloped site.
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Land Sold To State 
NSP-Wisconsin sold nearly 

6,900 acres of land around the 
Chippewa Flowage near Hayward, 
Wis., to the State of Wisconsin. The 
state, which bought the property for 
almost $7 million, will continue to 
manage it as a recreational and 
protected wildlife area.  

The company in January 1989 
sold another 1,600 acres of land near 
the flowage to the U.S. Forest Service 
for $1.36 million.  

The Wisconsin governor saluted 
NSP-Wisconsin's role "as a leader in 
using alternate fuels to generate 
electricity through environmentally 
and economically practical methods," 
in reference to NSP-Wisconsin's 
refuse processing plant in La Crosse.  
The plant, which processes up to 280 
tons of municipal solid waste a day, 
began commercial operations in July.  
We burn the RDF at our nearby 
French Island generating plant.  

Renovations at the 72-Mw coal
fired Bay Front plant are more than 
half complete. NSP in 1988 installed 
a new air quality control system, 
automated the ash removal system 
and began upgrading the electrical 
system.  

MTarketing- EIforts HelDone 

NSP-Wisconsin offers a variety 
of services that promote energy 
efficiency, including rebates for pur
chases of efficient appliances. The 
company's rebate program, which 
began in 1987, gained popularity 
quickly. In 1988, we handled 9,100 
rebate requests, twice the expected 
number.

The company also offers 
special load management rates. NSP
Wisconsin estimates load manage
ment programs reduced the summer 
peak demand by more than 21 Mw.  

Low Rates A Good Selling Point 
NSP-Wisconsin's natural gas 

business had a big year, setting 
records for total sales, peak demand 
and the number of new customers.  

Promoting its service and gas 
rates, the lowest in the state, NSP
Wisconsin began a major gas service 
expansion, branching into new areas 
and seeking new customers along 
existing gas mains. The company 
added more than 2,000 residential 
customers and 290 commercial and 
industrial accounts, including several 
schools and a growing industrial park 
near Eau Claire.  

NSP-Wisconsin promotes 
its home state and its home base, 
western Wisconsin, to retain and at

Average Cost of Gas 
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tract new businesses and jobs. Our 
low gas rates and electric rates, also 
the lowest in the state, have a promi
nent place in the promotions.  

The company's extensive eco
nomic development efforts in conjunc
tion with local and state programs 
successfully draw attention and pros
pects to the area. In 1988 alone, our 
efforts resulted in more than 1,100 
new manufacturing jobs.  

Growing With The Community 
NSP eight years ago began 

offering energy education curricula 
to schools in its service territory.  
The company in October celebrated 
reaching its one-millionth student.  

Today, 90 percent of the ele
mentary schools and 60 percent of the 
high schools in our Minnesota, North 
Dakota and South Dakota communi
ties receive NSP education programs.  
These include curricula, films, tours 
and speakers. The programs reach 
more than 80 percent of the schools 
in NSP-Wisconsin's area.  

ASK NSP, our free consumer 
education line, received a record 
159,406 calls, an 18 percent increase 
over 1987. The popularity of the two 
most requested tapes, "Appliance 
Rebate Program" and "Selecting 
Central Air Conditioning," reflected 
the unusually hot summer weather.
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According to a statewide 
organization, NSP in 1988 was the 
number one Minnesota corporate 
contributor of funds to benefit people 
in need. These funds not only aid 
people in crisis situations, they also 
help individuals and families become 
self-sufficient.  

NSP-Wisconsin piloted the 
Partners in Energy Savings program 
to educate low-income renters about 

Retail Electric Sales Growth 
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Maybe People magazine hasn't 

discovered it yet, but Ironwood, 

Mich., attracts nearly as many 

skiers as does Sun Valley, 

Idaho.  

energy conservation. Participants 
attend an educational seminar, have a 
free home energy audit and receive 
economic incentives to save energy.  

NSP employees and retirees 
donate their time and skills to others.  
About 180 Twin Cities area employees 
deliver meals to the elderly during 
their lunch hours through the Meals 
on Wheels program.  

Retirees also provide commun
ity service in a variety of programs 
through the Pioneers in Public 
Service (PIPS) program. PIPS takes 
its name from the inscription on an old 
NSP logotype. PIPS gives retirees 
and their spouses the opportunity to 
keep in touch while providing needed 
services to individuals and local 
agencies.  

Employees in 1988 contributed 
more than $661,000 to the United 
Way, exceeding the ambitious goal of 
matching 1987s contributions. Em
ployees achieved the goal despite a 
smaller base of employees as a result 
of the early retirement program. Re
tirees doubled their contributions.

N'SP Part Of E-conomic Decvelopment 
NSP attracts new customers to 

its service territories and maintains 
its existing ones primarily by assur
ing them of reliable, low-cost energy.  
We also actively promote our area, 

88 rich in human and natural resources.

NSP in 1988 sponsored an award
winning national advertising cam
paign aimed at potential customers.  
The ads triggered inquiries from 
more than 600 businesses.  

We also contribute to local eco
nomic development efforts and fund 
market research studies to determine 
a city's potential to attract certain 
industries.  

Through a professional manage
ment association, we sponsored 
seminars for existing and potential 
small business customers. The semi
nars offered tips for corporate 
success, covering financing, business 
practices and management.



The Schmidt brewery tower has been a St. Paul landmark since 1909.  
G. Heileman Brewing Co. in La Crosse and its Jacob Schmidt Brewing 
Co. division are two of NSPs largest gas customers.

We also participate in trade 
shows and work with real estate bro
kers and agencies that could place 
new businesses in our area.  

Individual employees get in
volved too, providing knowledge and 
leadership to state and local develop
ment groups that work to attract 
new business to the area.  

NSP invites others to live and 
work in the area that we call home 
a place that combines economic 
stability, valuable resources and high 
quality electric and natural gas 
services that are priced among the 
lowest in the nation.

Brewers like to use natural gas because it is convenient, 

clean-burning and economical. But energy-intensive, price-sensitive 

customers like Schmidt and Heileman breweries also are attracted to 

low-cost oil.  

To help them control energy costs, ISP offers flexible rates 

that are competitive with oil prices. Also, Minnesota regulations 

allow NSP to offer agency services, arranging Schmidt's gas pur

chases from other suppliers when it better suits the brewer's needs.  

Responding to other energy needs, NSP worked with Heileman 

to program a monitoring system to reduce peak electric use and 

gave the company a $12,000 rebate for installing efficient lights.
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Operating Statistics

1988 1987 

Electric 
Revenues (thousands) 

Residential 
With space heating $ 64 504 $ 56 115 
Without space heating 527 819 466 313 

Small commercial and industrial 285 094 256 905 
Large commercial and industrial 634 125 579 015 
Street lighting and other 34 475 32 227

Total retail 
Sales for resale 
Miscellaneous 

Total 

Sales (millions of kilowatt-hours) 
Residential 

With space heating 
Without space heating 

Small commercial and industrial 
Large commercial and industrial 
Street lighting and other 

Total retail 
Sales for resale 

Total 

Customer Accounts (at Dec. 31) 
Residential 

With space heating 
Without space heating 

Small commercial and industrial 
Large commercial and industrial 
Street lighting and other 

Total retail 
Sales for resale 

Total 

Residential with Space Heating 
Annual kwh per customer 
Annual revenue per customer 
Average revenue per kwh 

Residential without Space Heating 
Annual kwh per customer 
Annual revenue per customer 
Average revenue per kwh 

Kilowatt-hour Output (millions) 
Thermal 
Hydro 
Purchased and interchange 

Total

1 546 017 
115 319 
20 589

1 390 575 
86 002 
20 868

$1 681 925 $1 497 445

1 126 
7 975 
4 982 

14 982 
522 

29 587 
5 209 

34 796

72 836 
1 061 691 

134 007 
6 808 
5 345 

1 280 687 
76 

1280763 

15 668 
$897.58 

5.73o 

7 577 
$501.48 

6.620 

30 739 
565 

5 688 
36 992

994 
7 389 
4 675 

14 191 
502 

27 751 
3 890 

31 641

71118 
1 044 992 

131 797 
6 565 
5 300 

1 259 772 
74 

1259846 

14 177 
$800.33 

5.65w 

7 157 
$451.67 

6.31V 

27 518 
665 

5 363 

33 546

1986 1985 1984 1978 

$ 58839 $ 58309 $ 53611 $ 17921 
445 304 425 652 421 894 252 914 
246 693 236 915 228 802 122 992 
548 986 515 794 506 906 266 804 

31 203 30 734 31 241 19 193 

1 331 025 1 267 404 1 242 454 679 824 
77 606 94 605 104 180 125 592 
19 103 14 103 15 986 4 252 

$1 427 734 $1 376 112 $1 362 620 $ 809 668

1 063 
7 095 
4 487 

13 327 
489 

26 461 
3 166 

29 627

69 376 
1 022 872 

127 780 
6 364 
5 291 

1 231 683 
77 

1231 760 

15 581 
$862.29 

5.53U 

6 998 
$439.22 

6.280 

22 243 
1 112 
8 188 

31 543

1 066 
6 900 
4 326 

12 569 
500 

25 361 
4 211 

29 572

66 668 
1 010 194 

125 992 
6 049 
5 245 

1 214 148 
81 

1214229 

16 522 
$903.72 

5.47V 

6 887 
$424.86 

6.170 

24 095 
1 200 
6 317 

31 612

980 
6 826 
4 158 

12 250 
515 

24 729 
3 947 

28 676

62 706 
996 997 
123 783 

5 816 
5 170 

1 194 472 
79 

1 194551 

16 203 
$886.10 

5.47e 

6 909 
$427.05 

6.184 

20 627 
1 062 
8 968 

30 657

575 
6 118 
3 172 
9 374 

526 

19 765 
6 795 

26 560

32 846 
892 127 
102 049 

4 861 
6 504 

1 038 387 
84 

1038471 

19 637 
$612.20 

3.120 

6 923 
$286.19 

4.130 

25 866 
945 

1 499 

28 310
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1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1978 

Electric - continued 
Capability at Time of Maximum 
Demand (megawatts) 

Company owned 6 753 6 268 6 121 6 057 5 924 6 257 
Purchases and sales-net (with reserve) 1 222 1 172 807 810 608 (341) 

Total 7975 7440 6928 6867 6532 5916 

Maximum Demand (megawatts) 6 923 6 377 6 012 5 205 5 544 4 625 
Date of Maximum Demand Aug. 16 July 31 July 18 July 9 Aug. 6 Sept. 7

1988 1987 1986

Gas 
Revenues (thousands) 

Residential 
With space heating 
Without space heating 

Commercial and industrial 
Firm 
Interruptible 

Miscellaneous* 

Total 

Sales (thousands of mcf) 
Residential 

With space heating 
Without space heating 

Commercial and industrial 
Firm 
Interruptible 

Miscellaneous 

Total 

Agency & Transportation Deliveries 
(thousands of mcf) 

Customer Accounts (at Dec. 31) 
Residential 

With space heating 
Without space heating 

Commercial and industrial 

Total 

Residential with Space Heating 
Annual mcf per customer 
Annual revenue per customer 
Average revenue per mcf 

Gas Purchased for Resale 
Total cost (thousands) 
Cost per mcf sold** 

Maximum Sendout (mcf) 
Date of Maximum Sendout 

*Includes revenues for transportation services 

**mcf sold excludes transportation service volumes

$163 489 
2 959 

96567 
44 529 

7211 

$314 755 

33 740 
404 

22681 
16211 

856 

73 892 

6 542 

280 205 
22 435 
31 222 

333 862 

123 
$594.96 

$4.85 

$210 214 
$2.84 

568 354 
Jan. 4

$135 379 
2 722 

78452 
42 258 
4 185 

$262 996 

27 818 
372 

18809 
16 626 

606 

64 231 

6 151 

271 111 
23 140 
30 194 

324 445 

105 
$509.06 

$4.87 

$165 584 
$2.58 

537 304 
Jan. 22

$173 921 
3 383 

103275 
60 990 

2 300 

$343 869 

31 518 
431 

21 199 
17 891 

195 

71 234 

1 081 

262 223 
23 737 
29 230 

315 190 

122 
$675.37 

$5.52 

$236 013 
$3.31 

547 701 
Jan. 6

1985 1984

$195 248 
3 838 

118760 
81 501 

2 853 

$402 200 

32 850 
464 

22042 
19 986 

114 

75 456 

106 

255 154 
24 420 
28 414 

307 988 

131 
$779.75 

$5.94 

$300 375 
$3.98 

610 914 
Jan. 19

1978

$191 793 $80 394 
4274 2993

120088 
82 829 
2 981 

$401 965 

31 281 
513 

21314 
19 279 

116 

72 503 

1 119 

248 335 
25 210 
27 474 

301 019 

128 
$782.78 

$6.13 

$303 985 
$4.19 

559 143 
Jan. 19

41758 
32 679 

2 657 

$160 481 

31 533 
801 

17468 
18 640 

40 

68 482 

0 

198 977 
35 124 
22 222 

256 323 

161 
$409.87 

$2.55 

$109 021 
$1.59 

400 979 
Jan. 9
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1988 Results and Objectives 

0 Earnings per share were $3.11, compared with $3.01 
a year ago.  

o Dividends increased 5 percent, to an annual rate 
of $2.12.  

: Return on equity was 13.9 percent, down from last 
year's 14.1 percent, but considerably above the electric utility 
industry average of 13 percent.  

Earnings increased primarily as a result of strong elec
tric sales growth due to the unusually hot summer and a 
robust economy, and increased electric rates. Partially offset
ting these factors were costs associated with a full year's 
operation of the new Sherco 3 generating plant and higher 
operating and maintenance costs.  

Retail electric sales overall increased 6.6 percent. Sales 
to residential customers were up 8.6 percent due primarily 
to the exceptionally hot summer weather; commercial and in
dustrial sales grew 5.8 percent, boosted by a healthy economy 
and the hot summer. In addition, 1988 firm gas sales were up 
20.9 percent compared with sales during 1987s extremely 
mild winter.  

Credit Quality Excellent 

NSP sets several financial objectives that, when met, 
keep the cost of money to a minimum and allow NSP to main
tain a flexible financial position. Meeting these objectives also

enables NSP to provide low-cost, high quality service to its 
customers and a reasonable return to its investors - the 
qualities of a premier energy company.  

NSP's capital structure in 1988 was right on target with 
our objectives. The goal is to have 40-45 percent of capital 
structure in total debt, 45-50 percent in common equity, and 
7-12 percent in preferred stock. In 1988, capital structure 
was 42.1 percent debt, 46.5 percent common equity and 
11.4 percent in preferred stock.  

Pre-tax interest coverage also was within NSP's objec
tive range of 3.5-5.0 times interest charges without 
Allowance for Funds Used During Construction. Our 1988 
coverage was 3.9 times interest charges.  

In 1988, NSP generated internally all of its cash needs.  
Our five-year construction financial forecast indicates modest 
financing needs, therefore, we expect our credit quality 
measures (capital structure, interest coverage and internal 
cash generation) to continue to improve. In that time period, 
NSP expects to meet virtually all of its cash needs internally.  

NSP's credit quality, as measured by major bond rating 
agencies, is among the best in the industry. Our secured debt 
is rated Aal by Moody's and 2 by Duff & Phelps. Standard & 
Poor's (S&P) in April lowered our rating from AA + to AA as 
a result of the 1988 Minnesota electric rate case agreement 
that lowered the authorized return on equity levels. Although 
the downgrade is disappointing, NSP still is in good company.  
Our ratings place us in the top 10 percent of electric utilities.

Capital Structure 
Total debt 

-Objective range 40-45% 

60%

Capital Structure 
Common equity 

"Objective range 45-50% 

60%

Bond Interest Coverage 
Pre-tax without AFC 

-7Objective range 3.5-5. Ox
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New ROE Objective Set 

NSP also sets objectives for return on equity (ROE), 

which we meet consistently. NSP has set a new, more strin

gent ROE objective to account for changes in the industry and 

to target its efforts toward excellence. The higher standard 

reflects NSP's past performance and is consistent with our 

intentions to remain a premier energy supplier. In 1988, we 

met both the old and the new objectives.  

The old objectives, based on five-year averages, were: 

Exceed the electric utility industry's average ROE and 

approximate the average ROE of U.S. industrials. NSP's five

year average through 1988 is 15 percent, compared with 

14 percent for the electric utility industry and 15 percent for 

U.S. industrials.  

We also met our new objective: Based on a three-year 

average, NSP's ROE should equal or be greater than the ROE 

of electric utilities in the top one-third of the electric utility 

industry. NSP's three-year average ROE is 14.4 percent, 

compared with an estimated 14.1 percent for utilities in the 

top third. Shortening the timetable from five years to three 

reflects the quickening pace of change in the industry.  

Return on Equity 
1979-1988 

20%

If we meet our ROE objective to be in the top third of 

electric utilities, earnings and dividend growth over the long 

term would be superior.  

NSP's ROE also compares well with those of the industry 

and U.S. industrials over a 10-year span, although this is not 

a corporate objective. This longer-term comparison reveals 

a company's ability to manage the effects of business cycles, 

inflation and interest rates.  

Dividends Increased for 12th Year 

The company's objectives for dividends include regular 

dividend increases and a payout ratio of 65-70 percent. In each 

of the last 12 years, NSP has increased dividends. In 1988 quar

terly dividends were increased 5 percent to 53 cents per 

share, bringing the payout ratio to 67 percent.  

Total Return Measures Long-Term Performance 

A good performance measure for investors is total 

return, which takes into account stock price appreciation plus 

dividends paid. In the past five years, NSP outperformed the 

market in total return. Since the beginning of 1984, NSP's 

total return climbed 19 percent a year. Total return for the 

S&P 500 rose 15 percent a year.  

Dividend Payout Ratio 
Objective range 65-70% 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

NSP's 1988 earnings per share were $3.11, up 10 cents 

from the $3.01 per share earned in 1987 and up 2 cents from 

the $3.09 per share earned in 1986. Electric rate increases 

and strong sales growth due to both favorable weather and 

a strong regional economy were partly offset by expenses 

associated with a full year's operation of the new Sherco 3 
generating plant and generally higher operating and 

maintenance expenses.  

Electric Sales and Revenues 

Retail sales in 1988 increased 6.6 percent over 1987, 
primarily because favorable weather and a strong economy 

increased use per customer. The addition of 20,915 customers 
accounted for 2.0 percent of the sales increase. Retail sales 

increased 4.9 percent in 1987 and 4.3 percent in 1986. On a 
weather-adjusted basis, sales to retail customers increased 

3.3 percent in 1988, 4.7 percent in 1987 and 4.2 percent in 
1986. Retail sales growth forecast for 1989 is 1.1 percent, 
or 4.8 percent over 1988 weather-adjusted sales. The table 

below identifies reasons for the electric revenue increases 

in the past three years.  

(Millions of dollars) 1988/87 1987/86 1986/85 

Sales Changes $ 83 $53 $44 
Rate Changes 84 (4) 31 
Fuel Clauses & Other 17 21 (23) 

Total $184 $70 $52

Retail Electric Sales Growth 

8% 
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Gas Sales'and Revenues 

NSP categorizes gas sales as firm (primarily to heating 

customers) and interruptible (to customers with an alternate 

energy supply). Firm sales in 1988 increased 20.9 percent 

primarily because of exceptionally warm weather in 1987. The 

increase also was due partially to a 2.9 percent increase in firm 

customers. Firm sales decreased 11.6 percent in 1987 due to 

warm winter weather and decreased 4.0 percent in 1986. On 

a weather-adjusted basis, firm sales increased 4.3 percent in 

1988, increased 2.9 percent in 1987 and decreased 0.2 percent 

in 1986. NSP forecasts 1989 firm gas sales to increase by 
2.2 percent over 1988, which is a decrease of 0.2 percent 
on a weather-adjusted basis.  

Interruptible gas sales, including customer-owned gas 
NSP transported, decreased 0.1 percent.  

The table below identifies the reasons for the past three 

years' gas revenue changes.  

(Millions of dollars) 1988/87 1987/86 1986/85 

Sales Changes $ 56 $(29) $(21) 
Rate Changes 0 (1) 8 
Purchased Gas Adjustment 

& Other (4) (51) (45) 

Total $ 52 $(81) $(58)

Gas Firm Sales Growth 

30% 

15 

0 

-15 84 85 86 87 88
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Electric Production Expense 

Fuel for electric generation increased 2.9 percent in 
1988, compared with a 23.8 percent increase in 1987 and a 8.3 
percent decrease in 1986, The modest increase in 1988 was due 
to lower coal prices which offset most of the 11.1 percent in

crease in total generation. The large increase in 1987 was due 
principally to increased production to meet sales growth and 
offset a reduction in power purchases.  

Purchased and interchange power costs in 1988 increased 
19.7 percent principally because of reduced availability of lower 
cost purchases from the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board due to 
below-normal water conditions at its hydro plants. Through a 
fuel clause adjustment, NSP passes on to customers changes 
in the cost of fuel and purchased power in all jurisdictions 
except Wisconsin.  

Gas Purchased for Resale 

Gas purchased for resale increased $44.6 million in 
1988 because of increased sendout and increased cost per mcf.  
The average cost per million Btu of gas was 8.7 percent higher 
in 1988 than 1987. Gas purchased for resale decreased $70.4 
million in 1987 and $64.4 million in 1986, primarily due to lower 
cost per mcf. NSP passes on to customers changes in the cost 

of purchased gas through a purchased gas adjustment clause 

in all jurisdictions except Wisconsin.  

Administrative and General, 
Other Operation and Maintenance 

These expenses, in total, increased 14.2 percent in 1988 
compared with increases of 1.8 percent in 1987 and 12.7 per
cent in 1986. The 1988 increase is attributable to increased 

maintenance costs at generating plants, a full year's operation

of Sherco 3, expensing one-half of the 1988 early retirement 
program cost (See Note 8 to the financial statements) and a 
contribution to the Employee Stock Ownership Plan (which 
was offset by reduced income taxes). Excluding a write-off 
of mandated conservation expenses in 1986, the 1987 and 
1986 increases would be 3.4 and 10.9 percent, respectively.  

Revenues from recent electric and gas rate cases offset 

the cost of those conservation expenses.  

Depreciation and Amortization 

Depreciation and amortization increased 22.4 percent 

in 1988 compared with increases of 8.0 percent in 1987 and 

1.4 percent in 1986. The 1988 increase was due primarily to an 
increase in nuclear decommissioning expense of $13.2 million 

and a full year's depreciation associated with the November 1, 
1987 start-up of Sherco 3. The 1987 increase was due primar

ily to the start-up of Sherco 3 and completed life extension 
projects in 1987 at four generating plants. 1986 expenses were 

reduced about 6 percent when the Minnesota Public Utilities 

Commission approved NSP's recommendation for longer lives 
for certain electric generating plants.  

Property and General Taxes 

Property and general taxes increased $16.8 million 

in 1988 due to higher property taxes primarily as a result of 

property additions. Taxes in 1987 increased $11.8 million due 

to additional property and higher mill rates. In 1986 taxes 
increased $10.4 million due to additional property.  

Income Taxes 

Despite higher earnings, income taxes decreased 

$2.4 million in 1988 primarily as a result of lower federal tax 

rates and the impact of the adoption of Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 96 (SFAS 96)-Accounting for 

Income Taxes. The statutory federal rate in 1988 was 34 

percent compared to 40 percent in 1987. See Note 1 of the 

financial statements for discussion of SFAS 96.
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Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFC) 

AFC decreased $37.7 million in 1988 due primarily 
to Sherco 3 being placed in service November 1, 1987. This 
decrease was partially offset by the recording of AFC on a 
pre-tax basis starting in 1988. This had no effect on earnings 
because deferred income taxes offset the difference between 
gross and net rates.  

Other Income and Deductions-Net 

This item in 1988 increased $10.7 million primarily due 

to a sale of land on the Chippewa Reservoir to the Wisconsin 
Department of Natural Resources and NORENCO net losses 
in 1987. NORENCO had virtually no impact on income in 1988.  
Increased earnings and a $9.2 million gain from a settlement 

between NORENCO and Waldorf Corporation were offset by 
$12.2 million in estimated expenses and write-downs of 
NORENCO assets in December 1988.  

The 1987 decrease of $9.9 million was principally 

because of a $10.5 million increase in NORENCO net losses.  
NORENCO's losses were due primarily to $5.9 million of 

write-offs for NORENCO projects and a $3.8 million loss 
related to the termination in June 1986 of steam service 

to a Waldorf manufacturing plant.  

Impact of Inflation 

Under the rate-making prescribed by the regulatory 
commissions, only the historical cost of plant is recoverable.  
While the rate-making process gives no recognition to the 
current cost of property, management believes it will be 
allowed to earn on the increased cost of its net investment 
when it replaces the facilities.  

Capital Resources 

Internally generated funds provided 100 percent of the 
$301 million construction expenditures for 1988 and 85 percent 
of the $2.2 billion construction expenditures for the five-year 
period 1984-1988. NSP estimates construction expenditures 
will be $350 million in 1989 and $1.9 billion for 1989-1993. NSP 
forecasts that internally generated funds will provide virtually 
all of the 1989 construction expenditures and the 1989-1993 
construction expenditures. In addition to the construction 
program, NSP will need $115 million during the five-year 
period 1989-1993 to retire long-term debt and meet 
sinking fund requirements.

In June 1988, the Company issued $50 million of auction 

preferred stock. The dividend rate for the initial dividend 

period was 5.7 percent per annum. Thereafter, auctions 
approximately every 49 days establish dividend rates.  

In April 1988, the Wisconsin Company issued $40 million 
of 30-year first mortgage bonds. The bonds have a stated 
interest rate of 9.75 percent per annum, with the cost to the 
Wisconsin Company of 9.84 percent per year.  

Tax-benefit transfer leases purchased under the Safe 
Harbor Lease Provision of the Economic Recovery Tax Act 
of 1981 have enabled NSP to defer a total of $127 million of 
current income taxes through 1988. In 1987, deferred taxes 
began to reverse, causing additional current income tax pay
ments over the remaining lives of the leases. During the five
year period 1989-1993, NSP expects to pay $37 million of 
current income taxes that had been deferred.  

Liquidity 

Internal funds generation, access to long-term securi
ties markets and the availability of long- and short-term credit 
line commitments provide liquidity. Access to securities mar
kets can be correlated to credit quality. The Company's first 
mortgage bonds are rated Aal by Moody's, AA by Standard & 
Poor's and 2 by Duff & Phelps. Consequently, NSP expects to 
have access to long-term debt markets on better terms than 
the electric utility industry in general. At December 31, 1988, 
there were no outstanding notes payable. As of December 31, 
1988, commercial banks supplied the Company with credit 
lines of $165 million plus revolving long-term commitments 
of $76 million.
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Statement of Income Year Ended December 31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 1986 

Operating Revenues 
Electric $1681925 $1497445 $1427734 
Gas 314 755 262 996 343 869 
Telephone 9 778 9 888 10 027 

Total 2006458 1770329 1781630 

Operating Expenses 
Fuel for electric generation 300 269 291 667 235 557 
Purchased and interchange power 105960 88507 112984 
Gas purchased for resale 210214 165584 236013 
Administrative and general 171 814 140 616 154 544 
Other operation 253 631 229 132 212 006 
Maintenance 172 280 153 570 147 557 
Depreciation and amortization 208 629 170 517 157 837 
Property and general taxes 163 436 146 595 134 784 
Income taxes 117073 119500 136527 

Total 1 703 306 1 505 688 1 527 809 

Operating Income 303 152 264 641 253 821 

Other Income and Expense 
Allowance for funds used during construction- equity 5 968 38 194 40 065 

Other income and deductions-net 8377 (2329) 7553 

Total 14345 35865 47618 

Income Before Interest Charges 317497 300506 301439 

Interest Charges 
Interest on long-term debt 103 769 101 360 100 415 

Other interest and amortization 6424 7190 5753 
Allowance for funds used during construction- debt (7 476) (12 958) (11 611) 

Total 102717 95592 94557 

Net Income 214 780 204 914 206 882 
Preferred Stock Dividends 20 273 16 650 13 539 

Earnings Available for Common Stock $ 194 507 $ 188 264 $ 193 343 

Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding (000s) 62 541 62 541 62 541 
Earnings per Share on Average Common Shares $3.11 $3.01 $3.09 
Common Dividends Declared per Share $2.095 $1.99 $1.865 

Statement of Retained Earnings Year Ended December31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 1986 

Balance at Beginning of Year $853 006 $788 697 $713 024 

Net Income 214 780 204 914 206 882 

Income Tax Savings on Dividends Paid on ESOP Shares 1 720 
Capital Stock Expense and Other (1 697) (1 218) (1 029) 

Net additions 213083 205416 205853 

Dividends Declared 
Cumulative preferred stock at required rates 20 263 16 650 13 539 
Common stock-per share: 1988, $2.095; 1987, $1.99; 1986, $1.865 131 024 124 457 116 641 

Total dividends declared 151287 141107 130180 

Balance at End of Year $914 802 $853 006 $788 697

See Notes to Financial Statements on pages 34 to 40
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Statement of Cash Flows Year Ended December31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 1986 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Net Income $214 780 $204 914 $206 882 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 230 502 193 538 178 185 
Nuclear fuel amortization 51 447 50 525 49 602 
Deferred income taxes (4 126) 14 097 87 767 
Investment tax credit adjustments (14 796) 3 465 25 430 
AFC-equity (5 968) (38 194) (40 065) 
Other 34 878 (385) (547) 

Cash provided by (used for) changes in certain working capital items 34 058 15 024 53 528 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 540 775 442 984 560 782 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: 

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 54 094 19 907 84 031 
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 50 000 65 000 30 000 
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 12 350 16 721 
Construction funds withdrawals 26978 61041 63301 
Construction funds held by trustee (1 186) (3 179) (23 917) 
Repayment from ESOP 9914 3556 
Payment to ESOP to purchase shares (13 500) (8 000) 
Repayment of short-term debt (78 200) 
Redemption of long-term debt (43 550) (40 886) (52 409) 
Redemption of preferred stock (12 263) 
Dividends paid (149 809) (137 929) (127 787) 

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities (145 259) (20 140) (30 323) 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 

Construction expenditures capitalized (300 703) (451 742) (555 625) 
Increase (decrease) in construction payables (12 532) (19 403) (19 604) 
AFC-equity 5 968 38 194 40 065 
Sale (purchase) of short-term investments - net (51 950) 6 231 1 047 
Other (10284) 6030 4908 

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities (369 501) (420 690) (529 209) 
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 26 015 2 154 1 250 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 7603 5449 4199 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 33 618 $ 7603 $ 5449 

Cash Provided by (Used for) Changes in Certain Working Capital Items: 
Accounts receivable-net $ 1 140 $(13 752) $ 48 423 
Federal income tax refund receivable 989 298 (924) 
Materials and supplies 3 300 23 320 (2 667) 
Accounts payable 12283 4457 4354 
Income and other taxes accrued 13 097 9 080 (1 083) 
Other 3 249 (8 379) 5 425 

Net $ 34058 $ 15024 $ 53528 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information: 
Cash paid during the year for; 

Interest (net of amount capitalized) $100 092 $ 93 481 $ 92 126 
Income taxes 130974 95337 24940

See Notes to Financial Statements on pages 34 to 40
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Balance Sheet ........ December31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 

Assets 
Utility Plant 

Electric-including construction work in progress: 
1988, $123,828; 1987, $191,689 $5156712 $4961382 

Gas 362 457 341 432 
Other 156 165 155 539 

Total 5 675 334 5 458 353 
Accumulated provision for depreciation (1 911 437) (1 718 428) 

Nuclear fuel-including amounts in process: 
1988, $27,272; 1987, $24,845 535 170 511 313 
Accumulated provision for amortization (440 233) (388 785) 

Net utility plant 3 858 834 3 862 453 

Construction Funds 10 808 36 600 

Other Property and Investments 118082 111 201 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 33618 7603 
Short-term investments-at cost, which approximates market 52 750 800 
Accounts receivable 178 122 178 964 

Accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts (3 254) (2 956) 
Federal income tax refund receivable 6637 7626 
Materials and supplies-at average cost 

Fuel 42 462 49 706 
Other 63 468 59 524 

Deferred tax asset 29 795 
Prepayments and other 31 764 38 173 

Total current assets 435362 339440 

Deferred Debits 72 414 51 539 

Total $4 495 500 $4 401 233

See Notes to Financial Statements on pages 34 to 40
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December31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 

Liabilities 
Capitalization (Pages 32 & 33) 

Common stock-authorized 160,000,000 shares of $2.50 par value; 
issued shares: 1988 and 1987, 64,080,836 $ 160 202 $ 160 202 

Premium on common stock 379011 379011 
Retained earnings 914 802 853 006 
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares purchased with debt-shares 

at cost: 1988, 250,226; 1987, 123,379 (8031) (4444) 
Treasury stock-shares at cost: 1988 and 1987, 1,539,432 (19 194) (19 194) 

Total common stock equity 1 426 790 1 368 581 
Cumulative preferred stock-authorized 7,000,000 shares of $100 par value; 

outstanding shares: 1988, 3,500,000 and 1987, 3,000,000 350 000 300 000 
Premium on preferred stock 509 509 
Long-term debt 1 275 718 1 248 500 

Total capitalization 3053017 2917590 
Current Liabilities 

Notes payable 78 200 
Long-term debt due within one year 13396 30500 
Accounts payable 145 600 145 205 
Salaries, wages, and vacation pay accrued 24 930 25 574 
Federal income taxes accrued 2078 1 112 
Other taxes accrued 122 912 110 781 
Interest accrued 23 710 22 931 
Dividends declared on preferred and common stocks 37790 36312 
Other 1367 5306 

Total current liabilities 371 783 455 921 
Deferred Credits 

Accumulated deferred income taxes 702 972 724 462 
Accumulated deferred investment tax credits 255 488 270 284 
Net deferred regulatory liability 44 389 
Other 67851 32976 

Total deferred credits 1 070 700 1 027 722 
Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Total $4 495 500 $4 401 233

See Notes to Financial Statements on pages 34 to 40
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December31Statement of Capitalization

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 

Common Stock Equity 
Common stock-authorized 160,000,000 shares of $2.50 par value; 

issued shares: 1988 and 1987, 64,080,836 $ 160 202 $ 160 202 
Premium on common stock 379011 379011 
Retained earnings 914802 853006 
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares purchased with debt 

- shares at cost: 1988, 250,226; 1987, 123,379 (8 031) (4 444) 
Treasury stock - shares at cost: 1988 and 1987, 1,539,432 (19 194) (19 194)

Total common stock equity 

Cumulative Preferred Stock 
Minnesota Company 

$3.60 series, 275,000 shares 
4.08 series, 150,000 shares 
4.10 series, 175,000 shares 
4.11 series, 200,000 shares 
4.16 series, 100,000 shares 
4.56 series, 150,000 shares 
6.80 series, 200,000 shares 
7.00 series, 200,000 shares 
8.80 series, 250,000 shares 
7.84 series, 350,000 shares 

Variable Rate series A, 300,000 shares 
Variable Rate series B, 650,000 shares 

Total 
Auction series C, 500,000 shares 

Total 

Premium on preferred stock 

Long-Term Debt 
First Mortgage Bonds Minnesota Company 

Series due: 
Dec. 1, 1990, 5% $ 35 000 
Aug. 1, 1991, 4/s% 20 000 

June 1, 1992, 4%/% 15000 
Sept. 1, 1993, 4%Y% 15 000 
June 1, 1995, 61/8% 30000 
Mar. 1, 1996, 6.2% 8 800* 
Aug. 1, 1996, 5%/% 45000 
Oct. 1, 1997, 612% 30000 
May 1, 1998, 64% 45000 
Oct. 1, 1999, 8% 45 000 
Mar. 1, 2001, 8% 50000 
June 1, 2001, 814% 50000

$ 27 500 
15 000 
17 500 
20 000 
10 000 
15 000 
20 000 
20 000 
25 000 
35 000 
30 000 
65 000 

300000 
50 000 

$350 000

Mar. 1, 2002, 73%% 

Feb. 1, 2003, 712% 

Jan. 1, 2004, 8/%% 
Oct. 1, 1989-2004, 7.99% 
May 1, 1996-2005, 75%% 
May 1, 2005, 912% 

Dec. 1, 1989-2006, 6.41% 
Mar. 1, 2001, Variable Rate 
May 1, 2013, 10/%% 
Dec. 1, 2013, 103/s% 
Oct. 1, 2014, Variable Rate 
June 1, 2015, 111/2% 

Total 
Less current maturities 

Less amounts redeemed May 1, 
2013, 10%/% series 

Less amounts redeemed June 1, 
2015, 11112% series 

Net

*Pollution control financing 
*Resource recovery financing

1 426 790 1 368 581

300 000

350 000 

509 509

50 000 
50 000 
75 000 
35 000* 
25 000* 
80 000 
27 700* 

13 700* 
73 500 

100 000* 
32 500* 
98 000 

1 049 200 
4 700

1 049 200

750

1 000 

$1 042 750 1 042 750



Northern States Power Company, 33 
Minnesota and Subsidiaries 

December 31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 

Long-Term Debt - continued 
First Mortgage Bonds Wisconsin Company 

(less reacquired bonds of $915 and $1,111 at Dec. 31, 1988 and 1987, respectively) 

Annual Sinking 
Series due: Fund Requirenients 1988 1987 

Aug. 1, 1994, 4'2% $150 $ 11 389 $11 527 
Dec. 1, 1999, 914% 100 8 185 8 185 
Oct. 1, 2003, 73/% 300 25 661 25 777 
Jul. 1, 2016, 914%% 500 49000 49 500 
Mar. 1, 2018, 9%Y% 400 39 900 

Total $1 450 134 135 94 989 

Less sinking fund requirements not reacquired 546 
Net $133 589 $94 989 133 589 94 989 

Guaranty Agreements Minnesota Company 
Series due:* 
Feb. 1, 1989-2003, 5.41% $ 7300 $ 7600 
May 1, 1987-2003, 5.68% 27 250 27 750 
Feb. 1, 2003, 7.40% 3500 3500 

Total $ 38050 $38 850 38 050 38 850 

Miscellaneous long-term debt 
City of La Crosse, Resource Recovery Bond-Series due 

Nov. 1, 2011, 74% $ 18 600** $18 600** 
Employee Stock Ownership Bank Loan due 1987-1990, 

Variable Rate 1281 4444 
Anoka County Resource Recovery Bond-Series due 

Dec. 1, 1989-2008, Variable Rate 29 150** 29 750** 
Sioux Falls Ind. Development Bond-Series due 1976-1998, 5.75% 550 590 
Inver Grove Hgts. Ind. Dev. Bond-Series due Feb. 1, 1995, 7.125% 1 000 1 000 
Becker Pollution Control Bond-Series due Dec. 1, 2005, 7.25% 9 000* 9 000* 
Other 2676 3020 

Total $ 62 257 $66 404 62 257 66 404 
Unamortized discount on long-term debt - net (928) (943) 

Total long-term debt 1 275 718 1 248 500 
Total capitalization $3053017 $2917590 

*Pollution control financing 
*Resource recovery financing

See Notes to Financial Statements on pages 34 to 40
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Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Accounting Policies 

System of Accounts Northern States Power Company, 
a Minnesota corporation (the Company), and Northern States 
Power Company, a Wisconsin corporation (the Wisconsin Com
pany), maintain accounting records in accordance with either 

the uniform system of accounts prescribed by the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) or those prescribed 
by state regulatory commissions, which systems are the 

same in all material respects.  

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial 

statements include all significant subsidiary companies.  

Utility Plant and Retirements Utility plant is stated 
at original cost. The cost of additions to utility plant includes 

contracted work, direct labor and materials, allocable over

heads and allowance for funds used during construction. The 

cost of units of property retired, plus net removal cost, is 

charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation and 

amortization. Maintenance and replacement of items deter

mined to be less than units of property are charged to 

operating expenses.  

Change In Accounting Principle During the fourth 
quarter of 1988, the Company adopted Statement of Financial 

Accounting Standards No. 96 (SFAS 96) - Accounting for In

come Taxes. SFAS 96 requires the use of the liability method 

of accounting for deferred income taxes.  
The net effect of adopting SFAS 96 was an increase in 

net income of $2,665,000 ($.04 per share), of which 

$507,000 ($.01 per share) relates to prior years. Additionally, 
due to transactions related to the Employee Stock Ownership 

Plan (ESOP) in 1988, there was an increase in net income of 

$4,133,000 ($.07 per share), which was offset by a required 

contribution to the ESOP equal to the same amount after 

taxes. This eliminated any impact on net income or earnings 

per share. The effect of applying SFAS 96 as of the beginning 

of the year has not been reported as a cumulative effect of a 

change in accounting principle, and interim periods have not 

been restated, due to immateriality.

SFAS 96 requires the establishment of deferred 
tax liabilities and assets, as appropriate, for all temporary 

differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, 
deferred taxes are to be recorded using the tax rates 

scheduled by tax law to be in effect when the temporary 

differences reverse. Adoption of SFAS 96 resulted in a 
decrease in deferred tax liabilities from amounts previously 

reported and the establishment of a corresponding new 

liability - Net Deferred Regulatory Liability - of approxi

mately $44 million in 1988. A liability was established instead 

of increasing net income because it is probable that future 

rates and revenue requirements will be reduced to flow back 

previously collected excess deferred taxes.  

Income Taxes With the adoption of SFAS 96 in 1988, 
income taxes are deferred for all temporary differences be

tween pretax financial and taxable income, and between the 

book and tax bases of assets and- liabilities. Due to the effects 

of regulation, income tax expense is affected by the reversal 

of amounts previously accounted for by the flow-through 

method.  

Investment tax credits are deferred and amortized 

over the estimated lives of the related property.  

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFC) 
AFC, a non-cash item, is computed by applying a composite 

rate, representing the cost of capital for construction, to 

qualified Construction Work in Progress (CWIP) and to the 

balance of qualified construction funds on deposit with 

trustees. In 1988, the Company began using the gross AFC 
rate in accordance with the requirements of SFAS 96. The 

rate used for 1988 was 9.0%. Prior to 1988, because of rate 

treatment in Minnesota, the net of tax AFC rate was used. It 

approximated the rate that would be obtained if a gross rate 

were used and the income tax effect were recorded as 

deferred income taxes. The rate used was 8.5% for 1987 

and 1986. AFC is included in net income and CWIP. The 

AFC included in CWIP is included in utility rate base 

for establishing utility service rates.

34
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Construction Funds Construction funds from pollu
tion control and resource recovery financings are not available 

until approved expenditures have been made on the applicable 
facilities. Until the funds are available, they are invested by a 
trustee. Because AFC is calculated on the utility property 
trust fund balance during the period of construction, the 
earnings on the trust funds are credited to CWIP.  

Depreciation For financial reporting purposes, de
preciation is computed by applying the straight-line method 
to the estimated useful lives of various classes of property.  
Depreciation provisions, as a percentage of the average 
balance of depreciable property in service, were 3.58% in 
1988, 3.37% in 1987 and 3.48% in 1986.  

The provision for decommissioning costs for the 
Company's nuclear plants has been calculated by using an 
internal sinking-fund method that is designed to provide for 
full recovery of the costs. Based on a 1986 study, the Com
pany estimates that decommissioning costs will approximate 
$498 million in 1986 dollars, for which the Company has 
collected $116 million from rate payers. This amount is 
recorded in accumulated provision for depreciation.  

Nuclear Fuel Expense The original cost of nuclear fuel 
is amortized to fuel expense based on the energy expended.  
Nuclear fuel expense also includes a disposal cost of 0.10 
per kilowatt-hour of nuclear generation, as required by the 
Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982. Disposal expenses were 
$12.0 million, $11.6 million and $9.6 million for 1988, 1987 
and 1986, respectively.  

Revenues Customers' meters are read and bills are 
rendered on a cycle basis. For financial reporting purposes, 
revenues of the Company are recorded in the accounting per
iod during which the meters are read. The Wisconsin Company, 
pursuant to an order of the Public Service Commission of 
Wisconsin (PSCW), accrues estimated unbilled revenues 
for services provided from the monthly meter-reading date 
to month-end.

The Company's rate schedules, applicable to sub
stantially all its customers, include cost-of-energy adjustment 

clauses, under which rates are adjusted to reflect changes in 
average costs of fuels, purchased power, and gas purchased 
for resale. As ordered by the PSCW, Wisconsin Company 
retail rate schedules do not include cost-of-energy 

adjustment clauses.  

Purchased Tax Benefits The Company and the 
Wisconsin Company have purchased tax-benefit transfer 
leases under the Safe Harbor Lease provisions of the Economic 
Recovery Tax Act of 1981. For both financial reporting and reg

ulatory purposes, the Company is amortizing the difference 
between the cost of the purchased tax benefits and the 
amounts expected to be realized through reduced current 
income tax liabilities over the remaining terms of the leases 
after the initial investments have been recovered.  

Statement of Cash Flows During 1988, the Company 
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 95 
(SFAS 95) - Statement of Cash Flows. The Company has con
formed its 1987 and 1986 financial statements to include 
statements of cash flows for these years. For purposes of 
the statements of cash flows, the Company considers any 
debt instrument with a maturity of three months or less 
at the time of purchase to be a cash equivalent.  

2. NORENCO Write-Down 

NORENCO Corporation (NORENCO) a wholly owned, 
non-regulated subsidiary of the Company, is negotiating the 
sale of some of its facilities in early 1989. Based upon the 
bids received, NORENCO wrote down the facilities to net 
realizable value at year end. The write-down reduced 1988 
net income by approximately $7.4 million ($.12 per share).
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3. Income Tax Expense 

Total income tax expense differs from the amount computed by applying the federal income tax statutory rate (34% in 
1988, 40% in 1987 and 46% in 1986) to net income before income tax expense. The reasons for the difference are as follows:

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 

Tax computed at statutory rate $112 604 
Increases (decreases) in tax from: 

State income taxes net of federal income tax benefit 18 775 
Allowance for funds used during construction (AFC) (2 029) 
AFC included in book depreciation 4 826 
Investment tax credit on plant additions (3 597) 
Investment tax credit adjustments-net (10 127) 
Reduced tax depreciation resulting from use of 

the flow-through method in prior years 7261 
Dividends paid on ESOP shares (4 133) 
Other-net (7 171)

Total income tax expense 

Effective income tax rate 

Composite statutory tax rate 

Income tax expense is comprised of the following: 
Included in income taxes: 

Current federal tax expense 
Current state tax expense 
Deferred federal tax expense 
Deferred state tax expense 
Investment tax credit adjustments-net 

Total 
Included in depreciation expense: 

Deferred federal tax expense 
Deferred state tax expense 

Included in income deductions: 
Current federal tax expense 
Current state tax expense 
Deferred federal tax expense 
Deferred state tax expense 
Investment tax credit adjustments-net 

Total income tax expense 

Deferred income tax expense is comprised of the following: 
Excess of tax over book depreciation- net 
Unbilled revenue 
Tax-benefit transfer leases 
Overhead costs 
NORENCO write-downs 
NORENCO litigation settlement 
Other 

Total

$116 409 

35.2% 

39.6% 

$ 92317 
27 248 
7 732 

711 
(10 935) 

117 073 

3 307 
357 

10 520 
577 

(15 787) 
(446) 
808 

$116 409 

$ 27984 
(9 935) 
(4 807) 
(7214) 
(5531) 
(6 824) 
2 201 

$ (4 126)

1987 

$126 502 

13 171 
(20 435) 

3 927 
(21 820) 
8 263 

7 570 

(5 442) 

$111 736 

35.3% 

45.3% 

$ 72 098 
24 379 
15 725 

(947) 
8 245 

119 500 

2 023 
60 

(4 907) 
(4 922) 
(3 400) 
3 364 

18 

$111 736 

$ 39 124 
(10 531) 
(3 817) 
(960) 

(6 991) 

$ 16 825

1986 

$158 909 

16 862 
(23 771) 

3 676 
(45 090) 
31 534 

5 917 

(9 465) 

$138 572 

40.1% 

52.0% 

$ 40 885 
25 029 
33 742 
6 310 

30 561 
136 527 

4 133 
52 

(44 931) 
(6 918) 
41 982 
6 754 

973 

$138 572 

$ 47266 

45 686 
7 967 

(7 946) 

$ 92 973
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4. Common Stock 

The Company's Articles of Incorporation and First 

Mortgage Indenture provide for certain restrictions on the 

payment of cash dividends on common stock. At December 

31, 1988, the payment of cash dividends on common stock 

was not restricted.  

5. Cumulative Preferred Stock 

During 1988, the Company issued a series of auction 

preferred stock. The dividend rate on this stock is estab

lished approximately every 49 days by an auction process. At 

December 31, 1988, the annual dividend rate on this Series C 
was $7.55.  

The Company has two series of adjustable rate 

preferred stock. The dividend rates are calculated quarterly 

and are based upon prevailing rates of certain taxable govern

ment debt securities indices. At December 31, 1988, the 

annual dividend rates were $6.85 and $7.03 for Series A 
and Series B, respectively.  

At December 31, 1988, the various preferred stock 
series were callable at prices per share ranging from $100.00 
to $106.80, plus accrued dividends.  

6. Long-Term Debt 

The annual sinking-fund requirements of the Company's 

and the Wisconsin Company's First Mortgage Indentures are 
the amounts necessary to redeem 1% of the highest principal 
amount of each series of first mortgage bonds at any time out

standing, excluding those series issued for pollution control 
and resource recovery financings. The Company may apply 

property additions in lieu of cash, as permitted by its First 
Mortgage Indenture.  

Except for minor exclusions, all real and personal 

property is subject to the liens of the first mortgage 
indentures.  

The variable rate First Mortgage Bonds Series 

due Oct. 1, 2014 and March 1, 2011, and the variable rate 

Anoka County Resource Recovery Bond Series due Dec. 1, 
1989-2008, are redeemable at the option of the holder of the 

bonds upon seven days' notice. Their tax exempt interest 
rates are subject to change, weekly or monthly, and are 

based on prevailing rates for similar issues. The weighted

average interest rates applicable to these issues during 
1988 were 5.5%, 5.3% and 5.4%, respectively. These 

variable rate bonds are supported by $76,000,000 of 

long-term credit facilities that expire in 1994.  

Maturities and sinking-fund requirements on long-term 
debt are as follows: 1989, $13,396,000; 1990, $39,969,000; 
1991, $23,900,000; 1992, $18,950,000; and 1993, $19,100,000.  

7. Short-Term Borrowings and Compensating Balances 

Exclusive of the long-term credit facilities listed in 

Note 6, the Companies have $165 million of commercial bank 
credit lines. These lines involve differing compensating 

balance and commitment fee arrangements. Approximately 

$5 million of cash is considered compensating balances at 

December 31, 1988. There are no withdrawal restrictions on 
any bank balances. These additional credit lines make short

term financing available in the form of bank loans and support 
for commercial paper sales.  

8. Benefit Plans and Other Post-Retirement Benefits 

The Company has a noncontributory, defined benefit 
pension plan that covers substantially all employees. Benefits 

are based on years of service, the employee's highest average 
pay for 48 consecutive months and Social Security benefits.  

Pension costs are determined and funded under the 
aggregate-cost method, using market value of assets of the 

trust fund. Annual pension contributions were $22,584,000 

for 1988, $23,620,000 for 1987 and $26,360,000 for 1986.  
During 1987, the Company adopted the Statement 

of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87 (SFAS 87) 
Employers' Accounting for Pensions. For financial reporting 
and regulatory purposes, the Company's pension expense is 
determined and funded under the aggregate-cost method. For 
financial reporting purposes, SFAS 87 provides that pension 
expense be determined by using the same methods as used 
for regulatory purposes, with any difference between such 
amounts and the amounts determined under SFAS 87 being 
recorded as assets or liabilities on the balance sheet.
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Net periodic pension cost for 1988 and 1987 under SFAS 87 include the following components: 
(Thousands of dollars) 

Service Cost-benefits earned during the period 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Actual return on assets 
Net amortization and deferral 

Net periodic pension cost determined under SEAS 87 
Cost of early retirement program 
Expenses deferred due to actions of regulators 
Pension expense recorded during the period 

Portion of expense recognized for early retirement program 
Net periodic pension cost recognized 

Actuarial present value of benefit obligation: 
Vested 
Nonvested 

Accumulated benefit obligation 

Projected benefit obligation 
Plan assets at fair value 

Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation 
Unrecognized net gain 
Unrecognized net transitional asset 

Net pension liability

The weighted average discount rate and rate of 
increase in future compensation levels used in determining 
the actuarial present value of the projected obligation were 

8% and 6%, respectively. The assumed long-term rate of 
return on assets used for cost determinations under SFAS 87 
was 8.5% in 1988 and 8% in 1987. The effect of the change in 
the assumed rate of return was a reduction in the estimated 
SFAS 87 net periodic pension cost of $3,009,000. Plan assets 
consist principally of common stock of public companies and 

U.S. Government Securities.  
The Company offered a one-time, early retirement 

program for employees who had reached age 55 and 

completed 10 years of service as of January 31, 1988. The 

$20,208,000 cost associated with this program is being 

amortized over the expected rate recovery period of 

approximately two years.  

In addition to providing pension benefits, health 

care and death benefits are provided for retired employees.  

Substantially all employees become eligible for these benefits 

upon reaching retirement age. The costs of these benefits 

are recognized as an expense when paid. For 1988, 1987 and 
1986, costs attributable to retired employees were $6,987,000, 
$4,900,000 and $4,652,000 for medical benefits and $263,500, 
$313,000 and $305,500 for death benefits, respectively.

1988 1987 

$ 17561 $ 16280 
55 525 51 050 

(81 872) (46 387) 
31 125 3330 

22339 24273 
20 208 
(10 396) (653) 

32151 23620 

(11 010) 

$ 21 141 $ 23620

$491 519 
44 933 

$536 452 

$729 576 
742 810 

13 234 
(32 703) 

(1 147) 

$(20 616)

$445 450 
34 400 

$479 850 

$676 179 
678 385 

2 206 
(1 354) 
(1 505) 

$ (653)

The Company also has an ESOP plan that covers 

substantially all employees. Company contributions to this 

plan are required to the extent the Company realizes a tax 

savings on its income statement from dividends paid to ESOP 
stockholders. Contributions to the ESOP in 1988, 1987 and 

1986 were $6,841,000, $58,000 and $6,434,000, respectively.  

9. Joint Plant Ownership 

The Company is a participant in a jointly owned 855
megawatt coal-fired electric generating unit called Sherburne 
County Generating Station Unit No. 3 (Sherco 3), which 

began commercial operation November 1, 1987. Undivided 
interests in Sherco 3 are owned by the Company (59%) and 

Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency (Southern 

Minnesota) (41%). The Company is the operating agent 

under an agreement with Southern Minnesota. The 

Company's share of related expenses for Sherco 3 since 

commercial operations began are included in Operating 

Expenses. The Company's share of the cost recorded in 

Plant in Service at December 31, 1988 and 1987 were 

$576,076,000 and $573,024,000, respectively. The 

corresponding accumulated provisions for depreciation 

were $21,421,000 and $3,022,000.
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10. Commitments, Contingent Liabilities and Litigation 

The Company presently estimates construction 

expenditures, including acquisitions of nuclear fuel, will be 

$350 million in 1989 and $1.9 billion for 1989-93. There also 
are contracts for the disposal of spent nuclear fuel and for the 

purchase and delivery of coal and natural gas.  
Rentals under operating leases were approximately 

$11.7, $11.8 and $11.8 million for 1988, 1987 and 1986, 
respectively.  

Subject to MPUC and FERC approval, the Company 

entered into agreements with Minnesota Power (MP) to 

purchase a 214-megawatt (MW) share of the MP 535 MW 

Clay Boswell Unit 4 generating station and to purchase 102 

MW of system capacity and associated energy from MP for a 
period of 17 years. The agreement requires the Company to 

purchase increments of approximately 71 MW of the Boswell 

unit for each of three successive years, beginning May 1, 
1989. The total purchase price of the proposed share of the 
Boswell unit and transmission rights is approximately $180 
million. The agreement prescribes payment for capacity, fuel, 

operation and maintenance expenses for the 102 MW 
of system capacity and related energy, based on operating 

costs of the Square Butte generating plant in North Dakota.  
The MPUC approved the agreements in June, 1987. However, 
the FERC refused to issue a declaratory order concerning 

the prudency of the proposed transaction as required by the 

Boswell agreement. Consequently, the Company interprets 
the agreement to be null and void. MP does not agree with 
the Company's interpretation. The Company has filed a 
Complaint for Declaratory Judgment with the Hennepin 
County District Court to resolve this issue; MP has filed 
a counterclaim for damages and specific performance.  

The Company has executed several agreements 
with the Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board (MH) for hydro 
electricity. Under these agreements, MH will provide (i) 300 
MW of summer season capacity in exchange for the Company 
providing a like amount of capacity during winter seasons 
through 1992; and (ii) 200 MW of capacity, through 1992 with 
an annual cost of $2.4 million. These two commitments 

account for approximately 7% of the Company's system 
capability. Other agreements also provide (iii) 500 MW of 

capacity and 3,285,000 megawatt-hours of energy annually, 
beginning in 1993 and ending in 2004, with the annual cost 

based on 80% of the costs of owning and operating Sherco 3; 
(iv) 200 MW of capacity, beginning in 1993 and ending in 
1996, with an annual price of $2.4 million, escalated to

reflect increased costs of new plant construction; and (v) 200 

MW of summer season capacity, in exchange for the 

Company providing a like amount of capacity during winter 

seasons, beginning in 1997 and ending in 2016.  
The Company entered into an agreement in August 

1988 for the purchase of summer season capacity based on 

operational costs of Coyote Generating Station Unit 1 which 
is owned and operated by the Minnkota Power Cooperative.  

From 1992 through 2001, 150 MW of capacity will be pur
chased at an annual cost of $12.4 million. From 2002 through 
2015, 100 MW of capacity will be purchased at an annual 

cost of $10 million.  

Nuclear Insurance The Company's public liability 
for claims resulting from any nuclear incident is limited to 
$7.3 billion under the Price-Anderson amendment to the 

Atomic Energy Act of 1954. The Company has secured $160 
million of coverage for its public liability exposure with a pool 
of insurance companies. The remaining $7.1 billion of expo

sure is funded by the Secondary Financial Protection Fund, a 
fund available from assessments by the Federal government 

in the event of nuclear incidents. The Company is subject to 

an assessment of $63 million for each of its three licensed 
reactors to be applied for public liability arising from a nu
clear incident at any licensed nuclear facility in the United 

States with a maximum funding requirement of $10 million 
per reactor during any one year.  

In addition, the Company purchases insurance for 
property damage and decontamination and net clean-up costs 
with coverage limits of $1.7 billion, the maximum available.  
This insurance is arranged in two layers. The first layer, $900 
million, is placed with American Nuclear Insurers and Mutual 
Atomic Energy Liability Underwriters. The second layer, 
$825 million, is insured by Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited 
(NEIL). Under the insuring agreement with NEIL, the Com
pany is subject to assessments of up to $15.6 million in each 
calendar year, 7.5 times the amount of its annual premium.  

NEIL also provides insurance coverage for increased 

costs of generation and purchased power resulting from an 
accidental outage of a nuclear generating unit. Under the 

policy, the Company is subject to assessments up to $6.9 
million in each calendar year, 5 times the amount of its 
annual premium.
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11. Segment Information Year Ended December31 

(Thousands of dollars) 1988 1987 1986

Operating revenues 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

Operating income before income taxes 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

Total operating income before income taxes 

Depreciation and amortization 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

Total depreciation and amortization 

Construction expenditures 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

Total construction expenditures 

Net utility plant 
Electric 
Gas 
Other 

Total net utility plant 
Other corporate assets 

Total assets

$1 681 925 $1 497 445 $1 427 734 
314 755 262996 343869 

9 778 9 888 10 027 

$2 006 458 $1 770 329 $1 781 630

$ 385314 
32 502 

2 409 

$ 420225 

$ 192 520 
13 086 

3 023 
$ 208 629 

$ 252619 
25 703 
22 381 

$ 300 703 

$3 613 997 
228 812 

16 025 
3 858 834 

636 666 
$4 495 500

$ 353 303 
27 609 

3 229 

$ 384 141 

$ 155608 
12 648 
2 261 

$ 170 517 

$ 407 513 
21443 
22 786 

$ 451 742 

$3 626 311 
219 368 

16 774 

3 862 453 
538 780 

$4 401 233

$ 351 920 
34 724 

3 704 

$ 390 348 

$ 143 993 
12 013 

1 831 

$ 157 837 

$ 505 709 
21 205 
28 711 

$ 555 625 

$3 428 977 
213 481 

14 561 

3 657 019 
589 944 

$4 246 963

12. Summarized Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) Quarter Ended 

(Thousands of dollars) March 31, 1988 June 30, 1988 Sept. 30, 1988 Dec. 31, 1988 

Operating revenues $549 451 $442 833 $530 267 $483 907 
Operating income 88 940 61 240 103 727 49 245 
Net income 63886 43956 84642 22 296* 
Earnings available for common stock 59 202 39 276 79 240 16 789 
Earnings per common share $.95 $.63 $1.27** $.27* 
Dividends declared per common share $.505 $.53 $.53 $.53 
Stock prices-high $33% $33 $32s $34 

-low $29'2 $2914 $30 $31%/ 

Quarter Ended 

(Thousands of dollars) March 31, 1987 June 30, 1987 Sept. 30, 1987 Dec. 31, 1987 

Operating revenues $472 496 $398 627 $470 282 $428 924 
Operating income 75 078 47 462 89 497 52 604 

Net income 62 960 35 082 78 030 28 842 
Earnings available for common stock 59 554 31 154 73 444 24 112 
Earnings per common share $.95 $.50 $1.17 $.39 
Dividends declared per common share $.475 $.505 $.505 $.505 
Stock prices-high $39%/ $34 $34 $3312 

-low $32%/ $291/ $30s $26'4

*Fourth quarter decline in earnings is due primarily to a write-of] incurred 
by the Company and a write-down incurred by one of the Companys non
regulated subsidiaries.

**Includes revenue subject to refund of $.01 for the quarter ended September 

30, 1988, and $. 01 for the quarter ended December 31, 1988, related to the 

Wisconsin Company wholesale electric rate case.
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Report of Management to Shareholders 

Management is responsible for the preparation and 
integrity of the financial statements and representations in 
this annual report. We believe the financial statements were 
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. Where necessary, management made informed 
judgments and estimates of the expected results of events and 
transactions. The financial information throughout this report 
is consistent with the audited financial statements.  

Management depends on the Company's internal 
accounting control system for accurate financial reporting.  
This system reasonably assures us that we protected all 
assets and executed and reported transactions in accordance 
with our authorizations. We believe the Company's accounting 

policies and controls prevent material errors and 
irregularities, and they allow employees in the normal course 
of their duties to detect inaccuracies within a timely period.  

Directors who are not officers or employees make up 
the Finance-Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.  
The Committee meets regularly with management, internal 
auditors and independent certified public accountants to 
examine and evaluate the Company's internal accounting 
controls and financial reports. Internal and independent 
auditors have free access to the Committee, without man
agement's presence, to discuss the results of their audits.  

NORTHERN STATES POWER COMPANY 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 

February 10, 1989

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Shareholders of Northern States Power Company: 
We have audited the balance sheets and statements of 

capitalization of Northern States Power Company (Minnesota) 
and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 1988 and 1987, and the 
related statements of income, retained earnings, and cash 

flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 1988. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Companies' management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of the Companies 
at December 31, 1988 and 1987, and the results of their 
operations and cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 1988, in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles.  

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 

February 10, 1989
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Selected Financial Data 

(Millions of dollars, except per share data) 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 
Net income 
Earnings available for common stock 
Average shares of common stock 

outstanding (000s) 
Earnings per share on average shares 
Dividends declared per share 
Total assets 
Long-term debt 
Mandatory redemption of preferred 

stock (net of treasury shares) 
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Financial Statistics

Earnings per share on average shares 
Return on average common equity 
Dividends in percent of earnings 
Dividend in percent of book value 
Five-year growth rate in earnings 

per share (1) 
Construction expenditures (millions) 
Percent of construction expenditures 

financed by internally generated 
funds (excluding AFC) 

Cash dividend coverage 
AFC percent of earnings per share 
Effective tax rate 
Capitalization (2) 

Common 
Preferred 
Debt 

Total

Embedded cost of long-term debt 
Average plant investment per dollar 

ofrevenue 
Depreciation reserve in percent of 

depreciable plant 
Depreciation provision in percent of 

average depreciable plant 
Benefit employees (at Dec. 31) 

AFC - Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 

(1) Least squares method

1988 1987 

$3.11 $3.01 
13.9% 14.1% 
67.4% 66.1% 

9.7% 9.7%

2.0% 
$300.7 

100.0% 
3.4 

6.9% 
35.2% 

46.5% 
11.4% 
42.1% 

100.0%

8.32% 

$3.04 

33.4% 

3.58% 
7 504

4.3% 

$451.7 

70.7% 
3.2 

27.2% 
35.3% 

45.2% 
9.9% 

44.9% 

100.0% 

8.19% 

$3.27 

31.5% 

3.37% 
7 699

1986 

$3.09 
15.3% 
60.3% 

9.6% 

9.0% 
$555.6 

77.5% 
4.1 

26.7% 
40.1% 

44.8% 
8.1% 

47.1% 

100.0% 

8.03% 

$3.00 

34.7% 

3.48% 
7 515

1985 1984

$2.97 
15.6% 
58.2% 
9.6% 

13.4% 
$513.7 

60.5% 
4.4 

22.6% 
44.5% 

44.5% 
7.9% 

47.6% 

100.0% 

8.08% 

$2.71 

33.9% 

3.63% 
7 414

$2.90 
16.4% 

54.7% 
9.5% 

13.3% 

$401.0 

100.0% 
4.8 

19.2% 
44.8% 

45.1% 
8.6% 

46.3% 

100.0% 

7.98% 

$2.50 

34.6% 

3.55% 
7 347

(2) Includes notes payable and long-term debt and preferred stocks with mandatory redemption due within one year

1988 

$2 006.5 
$1 703.3 

$214.8 
$194.5 

62 541 
$3.11 

$2.095 
$4 495.5 
$1 275.7 

4.0

1987 

$1 770.3 
$1 505.7 

$204.9 
$188.3 

62 541 
$3.01 
$1.99 

$4 401.2 
$1 248.5 

3.9

1986 

$1 781.6 
$1 527.8 

$206.9 
$193.3 

62 541 
$3.09 

$1.865 
$4 247.0 
$1 292.1 

4.3

1985 

$1 788.7 
$1 540.1 

$197.7 
$184.7 

62 274 
$2.97 

$1.725 
$4 047.6 
$1 252.5 

9.1 
4.7

1984 

$1 775.6 
$1 532.4 

$192.1 
$178.8 

61 663 
$2.90 

$1.585 
$3 741.7 
$1 142.5

1978 

$979.3 
$807.3 
$115.2 
$100.7 

59 424 
$1.69 

$21.0675 
$2 451.5 

$893.1

9.1 
5.0

22.5 
4.6

1978 

$1.69 
13.3% 
63.1% 

8.7% 

5.4% 
$213.4 

97.0% 
4.1 

9.2% 
53.3% 

40.5% 
12.0% 
47.5% 

100.0% 

6.9%

$3.02 

26.4% 

3.41% 
6 580



Northern States Power Company, 
Minnesota and Subsidiaries

Shareholder information
1988 1987 1986 1985 1984 1978

Common stock shareholders 
at year-end 

Book value 
Market prices 

High 
Low 
Year-end closing 

Dividends declared 
Earnings per share 

Adjustedforjune 1986 two-for-one stock split 

Headquarters 

414 Nicollet Mall 
Minneapolis, MN 55401 
(612) 330-5500 

For stock information, call toll-free, 
Monday through Friday, 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., 
(800) 328-8226. From Minneapolis-St. Paul 
area, call 330-5560. Minnesota residents 
outside the Twin Cities call toll-free at 
(800) 292-4149.  

Stock Exchange Listings and Ticker Symbol 

Common stock traded on New York, 
Midwest and Pacific exchanges. NYSE lists 
some preferred stock. Ticker symbol: NSP.  
Newspaper market summaries list NSP as 
NoStPw.  

Direct Dividend Deposit 

NSP now offers direct deposit of 
dividends to shareholders' checking or 
savings accounts. To sign up for this free 
service, contact the Shareholders 
Department for informational booklets and 
authorization forms.  

Stock Purchase Plan and 
Dividend Reinvestment 

Individual shareholders may reinvest 
common and preferred dividends or make 
cash payments to purchase shares of NSP 
common stock through NSP without paying 
a brokerage fee. Contact the Shareholders 
Department for informational booklets and 
authorization forms.

78,001 

$22.81 

34%/ 
2914 
32/4 

2.095 
3.11

79,503 

$21.88 

3934 

26'4 
298 

1.99 
3.01

79,921 

$20.80 

401/ 

25 
3412 

1.865 
3.09

Annual Meeting 

Wednesday, April 26, 1989, 10 a.m., 
at the Guthrie Theater in Minneapolis.  

Dividend Payment Dates 

Dividends on common stock were 
paid the 20th of January, April, July and 
October and preferred stock dividends 
on the 15th of the same months. Auction 
series C dividends were paid approximately 
every 49 days.  

Form 10-K 

For copies of the Form 10-K, the 
annual report to the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, contact the General 
Accounting and Financial Reports Depart
ment. A statistical supplement to the annual 
report is also available.  

Street-Name Shareholders and 
Beneficial Owners 

If you do not already receive NSP's 
quarterly reports to shareholders and want 
to, contact the General Accounting and 
Financial Reports Department.  

Fiscal Agents 

Northern States Power Company 
(Minnesota) 
Registrar, Common and Preferred Stocks 
Norwest Bank Minnesota, N.A.  
Sixth and Marquette 
Minneapolis, MN 55479 

Transfer Agent, Common and 
Preferred Stocks 
Northern States Power Company 

Transfer Agent, Auction Preferred Stock 
Bankers Trust Company 
Four Albany St.  
New York, NY 10015

82,234 

$19.72 

27 ' 
20% 
26'2 

1.725 
2.97

85,784 

$18.40 

221s 
16s 
20' 8 

1.585 
2.90

101,389 

$12.99 

14's 
118 

11% 
1.068 
1.69

Dividend Distribution 
Northern States Power Company 

Forwarding Agent 
Norwest Trust Company, New York 
40 Wall St.  
New York, NY 10005 

Trustee - Bonds 
Harris Trust and Savings Bank 
111 W. Monroe St.  
Chicago, IL 60690 

Coupon-Paying Agents - Bonds 
Harris Trust and Savings Bank, Chicago 

Irving Trust Company 
1 Wall St.  
New York, NY 10015 

Northern States Power Company 
(Wisconsin) 
Trustee - Bonds 
First Wisconsin Trust Company 
777 E. Wisconsin Ave.  
Milwaukee, WI 53202 

Coupon-PayingAgents - Bonds 
First Wisconsin Trust Company, 
Milwaukee 

Harris Trust and Savings Bank, Chicago 

Irving Trust Company, New York 

This information is not an offer nor the solicitation 
of an offer to buy any securities.
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Northern States Power Company, 
Minnesota and Subsidiaries

Directors and Officers 
As of December 31, 1988 

Directors of the Minnesota Company 

David A. Christensen (53) 1,4 
President and CEO 
Raven Industries, Inc.  
Manufacturers of reinforced plastics, 
sportswear and electronic equipment 
(elected December1976) 

W. John Driscoll (59) 1,4 
President, Rock Island Company 
Private investment firm 
(elected November1974) 

N. Bud Grossman (67) 1,3 
CEO, Cogel Management Co.  
Private investment and business 
development firm 
(elected January 1979) 

Dale L. Haakenstad (60) 1,4 
President and CEO 
Western States Life Insurance Company 
(elected February 1978) 

James J. Howard (53) * 
Chairman, President and CEO 
Northern States Power Company 
(elected January 1987) 

Allen E Jacobson (62) 1,4 
Chairman and CEO, 3M 
Manufacturer of films, 
adhesives and health-care products 
(elected January 1983) 

Donald W. McCarthy (66) 3,4 
Chairman Emeritus 
Northern States Power Company 
(elected June 1975) 

John E. Pearson (61) 1,3 
Chairman and CEO 
The NWNL Companies, Inc.  
Holding company for insurance and other 
financial services subsidiaries 
(elected December1983) 

William G. Phillips (68) 2,3 
Retired Chairman, International Multifoods 
Food processing and marketing company 
(elected March 1979) 

G.M. Pieschel (61) 2,3 
President, Farmers and Merchants 
State Bank 
(elected February 1978) 

Dr. Margaret R. Preska (50) 1,4 
President, Mankato State University 
(elected January 1980) 

D.B. (Rhiny) Reinhart (68) 2,3 
Chairman 
Gateway Foods, Inc.  
Wholesale food distributor 
(elected November 1976)

A. Patricia Sampson (40) 2,3 
Executive Director 
Greater Minneapolis Area Chapter 
American Red Cross 
(elected January 1985) 
Board Committees 
1 Corporate Management 
2 Employee Retirement Income Security 

Act Compliance 
3 Finance - Audit 
4 Power Supply 

J.J. Howard is ex officio member 
of all committees.  

Principal Officers of the Minnesota Company 

A. W. Benkusky (62) 
Vice President 
Transmission and Inter-Utility Services 

Craig J. Blair (45) 
Sr. Vice President - Electric Utility 

Arland D. Brusven (56) 
Secretary and Financial Counsel 

Joseph A. Cascalenda (58) 
Vice President - Public Affairs 

Ronald H. Clough (53) 
Vice President - Electric Utility Operations 

James 0. Cox (61) 
Vice President and Treasurer 

James T. Doudiet (43) 
Sr. Vice President - Finance and Chief 
Financial Officer 

James J. Howard (53) 
Chairman, President and CEO 

Roland J. Jensen (59) 
Sr. Vice President - Power Supply 

Gary R. Johnson (42) 
Vice President - Law 

Charles E. Larson (52) 
Vice President - Nuclear Generation 

William J. Lynch (58) 
Vice President - Rates and 
Corporate Strategy 

Edward J. McIntyre (37) 
Vice President - Gas Utility 

Gerald S. Pettersen (57) 
Controller 

James R. Tacheny (56) 
Vice President - Combustion and 
Hydro Operations 

Loren L. Taylor (42) 
Vice President - Human Resources 

Keith H. Wietecki (39) 
Vice President - Marketing and 
Customer Service

Directors of the Wisconsin Company 

Jean Gitz Bassett (64) 
Retired President 
WLCX and WLXR Radio 
(elected February 1984) 

H. Lyman (Tad) Bretting (52) 
President and CEO 
C.G. Bretting Manufacturing Co.  
Manufacturer of napkin and paper 
towel folding machines 
(elected November1987) 

Chauncey H. Cooke (69) 
Farmer 
(elected May1975) 

Roland J. Jensen (59) 
Sr. Vice President - Power Supply 
Northern States Power Company 
(Minnesota) 
(elected August 1988) 

Ray A. Larson Jr. (59) * 

President, Wissota Sand and 
Gravel Company 
(elected November 1979) 

D.B. (Rhiny) Reinhart (68) * 
Chairman 
Gateway Foods, Inc.  
Wholesale food distributor 
(elected May 1973) 

Larry G. Schnack (51) 
Chancellor 
University of Wisconsin-Eau Claire 
(elected May 1988) 

Edwin M. Theisen (58) 
President and CEO 
Northern States Power Company 
(Wisconsin) 
(elected Januarv 1980) 

*Audit Committee Members 

Principal Officers of the Wisconsin Company 

Vincent E. Beacom (59) 
Vice President - Commercial and 
Division Operations 

John L. Koplin (55) 
Treasurer 

John P. Moore Jr. (41) 
Secretary and General Counsel 

Anthony G. Schuster (44) 
Vice President - Power Supply 

Edwin M. Theisen (58) 
President and CEO 

Glenn B. Thorsen (54) 
Vice President - Finance and Controller 

Patrick D. Watkins (48) 
Vice President - Administrative Services
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